
     Ffôn/Tel: 01656 643643                                                   Facs/Fax: 01656 668126          Ebost/Email: talktous@bridgend.gov.uk                                                                                 
     Negeseuon SMS/ SMS Messaging: 07581 157014           Twitter@bridgendCBC              Gwefan/Website: www.bridgend.gov.uk

Cyfnewid testun: Rhowch 18001 o flaen unrhyw un o’n rhifau ffon ar gyfer y gwasanaeth trosglwyddo testun
Text relay: Put 18001 before any of our phone numbers for the text relay service

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn y Gymraeg. Rhowch wybod i ni os yw eich dewis iaith yw’r Gymraeg 
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please let us know if your language choice is Welsh

Rydym yn croesawu gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. 
Rhowch wybod i ni os mai Cymraeg yw eich 

dewis iaith.
We welcome correspondence in Welsh. Please 
let us know if your language choice is Welsh.

Cyfarwyddiaeth y Prif Weithredwr / Chief 
Executive’s Directorate 
Deialu uniongyrchol / Direct line /: 01656 643148 / 
643147 / 643694
Gofynnwch am / Ask for:  Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd

Ein cyf / Our ref:      
Eich cyf / Your ref:      

Dyddiad/Date: Dydd Gwener, 18 Mehefin 2021

Annwyl Cynghorydd, 

PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD

Cynhelir Cyfarfod  Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd o bell - trwy Dimau Microsoft ar Dydd Iau, 
24 Mehefin 2021 am 10:00.

AGENDA

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb  
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb gan Aelodau.

2. Datganiadau o fuddiant  
Derbyn datganiadau o ddiddordeb personol a rhagfarnol (os o gwbl) gan Aelodau / 
Swyddogion yn unol â darpariaethau'r Cod Ymddygiad Aelodau a fabwysiadwyd gan y 
Cyngor o 1 Medi 2008. 

3. Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion  3 - 10
I dderbyn am gymeradwyaeth y Cofnodion cyfarfod y 25/03/2021

4. Adroddiad Blynyddol 11 - 14

5. Amrywiaeth mewn Democratiaeth 15 - 54

6. Rhaglen Sefydlu Aelodau 2022 55 - 64

7. Materion Brys  
I ystyried unrhyw eitemau o fusnes y, oherwydd amgylchiadau arbennig y cadeirydd o'r farn 
y dylid eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod fel mater o frys yn unol â Rhan 4 (pharagraff 4) o'r 
Rheolau Trefn y Cyngor yn y Cyfansoddiad.

Nodyn: Sylwch: Yn sgil yr angen i gadw pellter cymdeithasol, ni fydd y cyfarfod hwn yn cael ei 
gynnal yn ei leoliad arferol. Yn hytrach, bydd hwn yn gyfarfod rhithwir a bydd Aelodau a Swyddogion 
yn mynychu o bell. Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei recordio i’w ddarlledu ar wefan y Cyngor cyn gynted 
ag sy'n ymarferol ar ôl y cyfarfod. Os oes gennych unrhyw gwestiwn am hyn, cysylltwch â 
cabinet_committee@bridgend.gov.uk neu ffoniwch 01656 643147 / 643148.

Public Document Pack

mailto:talktous@bridgend.gov.uk
http://www.bridgend.gov.uk/


Yn ddiffuant
K Watson
Prif Swyddog – Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol, Adnoddau Dynol a Rheoleiddio

Dosbarthiad:

Cynghowrwyr Cynghorwyr Cynghorwyr
S Aspey
DG Howells
RM James
B Sedgebeer

SG Smith
G Thomas
E Venables
SR Vidal

MC Voisey
A Williams
RE Young



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 25 MAWRTH 2021

COFNODION CYFARFOD Y PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD A 
GYNHALIWYD O BELL TRWY MICROSOFT TEAMS DYDD IAU, 25 MAWRTH 2021, AM 
10:00

Presennol

Y Cynghorydd E Venables – Cadeirydd 

S Aspey DG Howells RM James B Sedgebeer
G Thomas SR Vidal A Williams

Ymddiheuriadau am Absenoldeb

RM Granville, SG Smith a/ac MC Voisey

Swyddogion:

Mark Galvin Uwch Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd - Pwyllgorau
Laura Griffiths Prif Cyfreithiwr
Michael Pitman Swyddog Gwasanaethau Democrataidd – Pwyllgorau

189. DATGAN BUDDIANNAU

Dim.

190. CYMERADWYO COFNODION

PENDERFYNWYD: Bod Cofnodion cyfarfod y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a gynhaliwyd ar 04 Tachwedd 2020 
yn cael eu cymeradwyo fel cofnod cywir.  

191. ATGYFEIRIADAU AELODAU

Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd adroddiad, a'i bwrpas oedd 
diweddaru'r Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar berfformiad Atgyfeiriadau 
Aelodau.

Atgoffodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd yr Aelodau o'r 
diffiniad o atgyfeiriad, sef cwyn / cais / ymholiad y mae Cynghorydd wedi'i dderbyn gan 
hetholwr y mae'r Tîm Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn ei anfon ymlaen at yr adran / 
sefydliad allanol perthnasol i gael sylw.  Gwneir y broses hon fel bod pob rhan o'r broses 
atgyfeirio yn cael ei chofnodi ac i sicrhau y derbynnir ymateb erbyn dyddiad cau y 
cytunwyd arno.

Cyfeiriodd y Pwyllgor at y tabl ym mharagraff 4.2 o'r adroddiad, a oedd yn dangos nifer 
yr atgyfeiriadau a wnaed bob mis rhwng 1 Mawrth 2020 a 28 Chwefror 2021.

Nodwyd y bu cynnydd sylweddol yn nifer yr atgyfeiriadau a wnaed nag yn y cyfnod 
cyfatebol ar gyfer y flwyddyn flaenorol (2789 o atgyfeiriadau).  

Roedd y Prif Weithredwr eisoes wedi hysbysu’r Aelodau mewn cyfarfod o'r Cyngor, y bu 
dros fil yn fwy o atgyfeiriadau aelodau i ddelio â hwy yn ystod y pandemig (Mawrth i 
Ragfyr 2020).  

Cyfeiriodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd y Pwyllgor at y 
tabl sydd ynghlwm yn Atodiad 1 yr adroddiad, a oedd yn adlewyrchu nifer yr 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 25 MAWRTH 2021

atgyfeiriadau a wnaed rhwng 1 Mawrth 2020 a 28ain Chwefror 2021, fesul 
Cyfarwyddiaeth.  

Dywedodd fod Bwrdd Prosiect Atgyfeiriadau Aelodau wedi'i sefydlu i ystyried a yw'r 
system bresennol yn addas at y diben ac i archwilio unrhyw gyfleoedd i wella'r broses 
atgyfeirio. Yn unol â hyn, mae Porth Cynghorwyr ar-lein sy’n cynnwys proses atgyfeirio 
aelodau yn cael ei dreialu gydag aelodau o'r Tîm Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, a bydd 
wedyn yn cael ei gyflwyno i grŵp peilot o Aelodau.  Bydd Protocol Atgyfeiriadau Aelodau 
diwygiedig hefyd yn cael ei ddrafftio a'i anfon at yr holl Aelodau yn unol â hynny.  Yn 
ogystal, er mwyn cefnogi Aelodau i wneud atgyfeiriadau, bydd sesiynau hyfforddi yn cael 
eu trefnu ac ar gael i'r Aelodau, ychwanegodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau 
Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd.

Nododd Aelod fod nifer yr atgyfeiriadau wedi cynyddu, ond ni recriwtiwyd unrhyw staff 
pellach yn y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, i ymdopi â gwaith pellach o'r fath. Roedd yn 
teimlo fod hyn yn rhywbeth y gallai fod angen edrych arno.  Ychwanegodd yr Aelod fod 
Cynghorwyr yn y rheng flaen o ran cefnogi eu hetholwyr ac unrhyw gwynion a 
wnaethant, gan gynnwys ar ffurf atgyfeiriadau. Felly, roedd yn rhaid iddynt ymateb i'r 
rhain mewn modd amserol er nad oedd hyn bob amser yn bosibl, gan nad oedd 
Adrannau'n ymateb i atgyfeiriadau yn ddigon cyflym. Pwysleisiodd, fodd bynnag, nad 
beirniadaeth a gyfeiriwyd at Wasanaethau Aelodau oedd hon mewn unrhyw ffordd, gan 
fod staff yno yn prosesu'r atgyfeiriadau drwodd i'r Adrannau priodol mewn modd 
amserol. Ychwanegodd fod rhai Adrannau yn cymryd misoedd i ymateb i atgyfeiriad, hyd 
yn oed o ran rhoi cydnabyddiaeth syml, heb sôn am ymateb sylweddol. Teimlai y gellid 
ystyried cyflwyno systen, lle dylai Adrannau Cyfarwyddiaethau roi llinell amser ar gyfer 
ymateb a chadw at hyn. Cytunodd Aelodau eraill y Pwyllgor â'r sylwadau hyn.

Ychwanegodd Aelod fod y pandemig a'r cyfnod clo wedi arwain at gynnydd mewn 
cwynion gan etholwyr, rhai ohonynt yn atgyfeiriadau. Enghraifft o hyn oedd mwy o 
sbwriel ar hyd llwybrau troed wrth i bobl fynd allan am dro yn amlach. Ychwanegodd ei 
fod wedi derbyn nifer o gwynion ynglŷn â hyn.

Nododd y Cadeirydd, o'r data a gynhwyswyd yn yr adroddiad, mai dim ond 65% o'r 
atgyfeiriadau a ddangoswyd fel rhai wedi'u cwblhau ym mis Mawrth 2020. Gostyngodd 
hyn i 35% ym mis Ebrill 2020. Roedd hi'n deall pam nad oedd y rhain efallai wedi'u 
cwblhau yn ystod cyfnod gwaethaf y pandemig, ond roedd hi'n teimlo y dylen nhw fod 
erbyn hyn.

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd y byddai'n 
ymchwilio i hyn ac yn ymateb i'r Aelodau ar yr un peth, y tu allan i'r cyfarfod.
Ychwanegodd, o ran pryderon yr Aelodau ynghylch derbyn ymatebion yn amserol i’r 
atgyfeiriadau y maent wedi'u gwneud, y byddai hyn yn cael ei ystyried ar y cyd â'r Porth 
Cynghorwyr ar-lein newydd a oedd yn cael ei dreialu ar hyn o bryd gan staff y 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. 

Gofynnodd yr Aelodau a allent hwy, fel Aelodau o'r Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd, hefyd dreialu'r Porth newydd cyn iddo fynd yn fyw, er mwyn sefydlu a 
oedd yn addas at y diben.

Atebodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd y gellid trefnu hyn 
ac y gallai Aelodau'r Pwyllgor gymryd rhan mewn hyfforddiant ar sut i ddefnyddio'r Porth, 
gyda hyfforddiant Atgyfeiriadau Aelodau hefyd yn cael ei gynnwys fel rhan o hyn.        

PENDERFYNWYD:                Bod y Pwyllgor wedi nodi'r adroddiad, yn amodol ar i'r 
arsylwadau uchod gael eu hystyried wrth symud 
ymlaen.

Page 4



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 25 MAWRTH 2021

192. CYFRANIAD TUAG AT GOSTAU GOFAL A CHYMORTH PERSONOL

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd adroddiad, a’i 
bwrpas oedd hyrwyddo penderfyniad Panel Annibynnol Cymru ar Gydnabyddiaeth 
Ariannol (IRPW) mewn perthynas â chyfraniad tuag at Gostau Gofal a Chymorth 
Personol (CPA) (ar gyfer Aelodau). 

Dywedodd fod adroddiad wedi'i gyflwyno i'r Cyngor ar 10 Mawrth 2021 yn amlinellu 
Adroddiad Blynyddol IRPW a gyhoeddwyd ym mis Chwefror 2021, gydag un o'r 
Penderfyniadau ar hyn fel a ganlyn:-

“Rhaid i’r holl awdurdodau perthnasol ddarparu taliad tuag at gostau angenrheidiol ar 
gyfer gofal am blant ac oedolion dibynnol (a roddir gan ofalwyr anffurfiol neu ffurfiol) ac 
ar gyfer anghenion cymorth personol fel a ganlyn:

• Costau gofal ffurfiol (wedi cofrestru ag Arolygiaeth Gofal Cymru) i’w talu yn unol 
â thystiolaeth;

• Costau gofal anffurfiol (heb gofrestru) i’w talu hyd at gyfradd uchaf sy’n gyfwerth 
â Chyflog Byw Gwirioneddol y DU ar yr adeg pan aethpwyd i’r costau. 

Rhaid i hyn fod am y costau ychwanegol a ysgwyddwyd gan aelodau i’w galluogi i 
gyflawni busnes swyddogol neu ddyletswyddau cymeradwy.  Rhaid i bob Awdurdod 
sicrhau bod unrhyw daliadau a wneir yn gysylltiedig â busnes swyddogol neu 
ddyletswydd gymeradwy, fel sy’n briodol.  Ni ddylid gwneud taliadau nes bydd 
derbynebau gan y darparwr gofal wedi’u darparu.  

Cadarnhaodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd fod 
cyfraniadau tuag at CPA, yn galluogi pobl sydd ag anghenion cymorth personol neu 
gyfrifoldebau gofalu i gyflawni eu dyletswyddau yn effeithiol fel aelod o'r Awdurdod.

Yn ystod ymweliadau diweddar ag awdurdodau lleol, canfu'r IRPW mai ychydig iawn o 
Aelodau oedd yn defnyddio'r ddarpariaeth Ad-dalu Costau Gofal yn eu Hadroddiadau 
Blynyddol, er bod yr IRWP yn annog Aelodau a oedd â chyfrifoldebau gofalu ac yn 
gymwys ar gyfer yr uchod, i wneud hawliadau o'r fath.

Mae IRPW yn cydnabod y materion yn ymwneud â chyhoeddi'r gost gyfreithlon hon ac 
felly mae wedi nodi yn ei Adroddiad Blynyddol, y gofyniad i gyhoeddi'r cyfanswm a ad-
dalwyd yn ystod y flwyddyn gan yr Awdurdod yn unig ac nid yn erbyn unigolyn. Byddai 
hyn yn osgoi unrhyw gyhoeddusrwydd niweidiol posibl y gallai hyn ei greu.

Mae'r IRPW hefyd wedi annog Pwyllgorau Gwasanaethau Democrataidd i gymryd 
camau i annog a hwyluso mwy o ddefnydd o'r ddarpariaeth CPA, fel nad yw Aelodau 
dan anfantais ariannol.

Gorffennodd ei hadroddiad, trwy nodi bod “Ffurflen Hawlio” Costau Gofal a Chymorth 
Personol wedi'i dylunio sydd â'r nod o wneud y broses yn symlach i'r Aelodau.  Bydd y 
ffurflen hon ar gael ar gais gan y Tîm Gwasanaethau Democrataidd.  
  
Roedd Aelod yn teimlo fod hon yn fenter gadarnhaol a’i fod yn credu nad oedd yr holl 
Aelodau yn gwbl ymwybodol ohoni o hyd. Felly awgrymodd y dylid anfon hysbysiad at yr 
holl Aelodau yn amlinellu'r ddarpariaeth hon; cytunodd y Pwyllgor y dylid gwneud hynny.

PENDERFYNWYD:                           Bod y Cyd-bwyllgor wedi nodi'r adroddiad. 

Page 5



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 25 MAWRTH 2021

193. RHAGLEN DATBLYGU AELODAU

Cyflwynodd y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd adroddiad, er mwyn rhoi 
diweddariad i’r Pwyllgor ar gyflawni Rhaglen Hyfforddi a Datblygu Aelodau’r Cyngor a 
gweithgareddau cysylltiedig. Gofynnwyd i'r Pwyllgor hefyd nodi pynciau i'w cynnwys ar y 
Rhaglen Datblygu Aelodau a Sesiynau Briffio Aelodau.

Atgoffodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd yr Aelodau fod 
gan y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd y swyddogaethau canlynol a'i fod yn cael 
ei gefnogi gan y Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn y rhain, yn ôl yr angen:

i. Adolygu digonolrwydd darpariaeth staff, llety ac adnoddau eraill gan yr 
Awdurdod i gyflawni swyddogaethau Gwasanaethau Democrataidd, a

ii. Gwneud adroddiadau ac argymhellion i'r Awdurdod mewn perthynas â 
darpariaeth o'r fath.

Esboniodd fod sylw cynyddol wedi'i roi i Ddatblygu Aelodau Etholedig. Roedd Mesur 
Llywodraeth Leol (Cymru) 2011 yn cyfarwyddo y dylai awdurdodau lleol roi mwy o 
bwyslais ar Ddatblygu Aelodau.  Felly anogwyd aelodau i nodi eu hanghenion datblygu 
eu hunain a chymryd rhan lawn mewn gweithgareddau dysgu a datblygu.

Roedd paragraffau 4 yr adroddiad yn rhoi manylion y sesiynau Datblygu Aelodau, 
sesiynau Briffio a sesiynau Hyfforddi'r Pwyllgor Rheoli Datblygu a ddarparwyd ers 
cyfarfod diwethaf y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd. Roedd paragraff 4.4 yn 
rhestru sesiynau o'r fath yn y dyfodol a gynlluniwyd yn y meysydd hyfforddi hyn a/neu 
Ddatblygu Aelodau.

Yna rhoddodd paragraff 4.7 wybodaeth am gyrsiau E-Ddysgu a oedd ar gael yn yr 
Awdurdod, a oedd yn cynnwys gwybodaeth am faint o Aelodau sydd wedi cwblhau’r 
rhain. Roedd y nifer a fanteisiodd ar y rhain wedi bod yn isel, ychwanegodd y Rheolwr 
Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd.

Yn olaf, dywedodd wrth yr Aelodau nad oedd sesiwn Datblygu Aelodau y gofynnwyd 
amdani yn flaenorol gan y Pwyllgor ar bwnc Iechyd Meddwl wedi'i threfnu eto, felly 
byddai hyn yn cael ei drefnu yn y dyfodol.

Roedd Aelod yn teimlo y dylid trefnu sesiynau Datblygu/Hyfforddi Aelodau yn awr ar 
ddiwrnodau lle nad oedd Aelodau wedi ymrwymo i gyfarfodydd Pwyllgor eraill, er mwyn 
osgoi treulio gormod o amser sgrin o bell mewn un diwrnod gan fod hynny’n flinedig o 
gymharu â mynychu cyfarfodydd yn flaenorol yn ystafelloedd y Cyngor. 
Roedd Aelod yn teimlo y byddai'n ddefnyddiol pe bai Swyddogion Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd yn cysylltu ag Arweinwyr Grŵp ac Aelodau Annibynnol, er mwyn nodi 
anghenion a gofynion dysgu Aelodau mewn sgyrsiau unigol.

Roedd yr aelodau hefyd o'r farn nad oedd E-Ddysgu yn ffordd ddelfrydol o dderbyn 
hyfforddiant mewn rhai meysydd, gan ei bod weithiau'n anodd mewngofnodi i'r system a 
llywio trwy'r cwrs i'w gwblhau'n llawn. Gan nad oedd y rhan fwyaf o hyn yn orfodol, 
teimlwyd nad oedd Aelodau yn aml yn gwneud amser i gymryd mwy o ran yn y math 
hwn o hyfforddiant a datblygiad, oherwydd ymrwymiadau parhaus mwy dybryd. Roedd 
Aelodau’n teimlo nad oedd E-Ddysgu yn hawdd ei ddefnyddio a’i fod yn ddull llai 
deniadol a phersonol, oherwydd absenoldeb hyfforddwr/darparwr yn cyflwyno’r cwrs yn 
bersonol.

Ychwanegodd Aelod nad oedd y Cynghorwyr eu hunain weithiau'n gwbl ymwybodol o 
feysydd yr oedd angen hyfforddiant arnynt, er mwyn gwella eu gwybodaeth am feysydd 
gwasanaeth llywodraeth leol ac ati. Felly roedd yn teimlo efallai y gellid mynd at y Bwrdd 

Page 6



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 25 MAWRTH 2021

Rheoli Corfforaethol er mwyn iddynt allu awgrymu pynciau hyfforddi, a fyddai'n 
cynorthwyo Aelodau i'r perwyl hwn ac yn helpu i wella eu cyfranogiad a'u prosesau 
gwneud penderfyniadau yng nghyfarfodydd allweddol y Cyngor.

PENDERFYNWYD:                Bod y Pwyllgor yn nodi’r adroddiad a bod Swyddogion 
yn bwrw ymlaen â'r awgrymiadau uchod, er mwyn 
datblygu a siapio rhaglenni Datblygu/Hyfforddi Aelodau 
allweddol pellach yn y dyfodol.  

194. CANLLAWIAU DIWYGIEDIG COD YMDDYGIAD OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU 
CYHOEDDUS CYMRU

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd adroddiad, a 
oedd yn rhoi gwybodaeth ynghylch Canllawiau Cod Ymddygiad drafft Pwyllgor 
Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru ar gyfer aelodau awdurdodau lleol yng 
Nghymru.

Dywedodd ei bod yn ofynnol i ni, fel awdurdod, fabwysiadu'r Cod ar ffurf y model yn ei 
gyfanrwydd, ond y gallem ychwanegu at y Cod, ar yr amod bod yr ychwanegiadau hyn 
yn gyson â'r Model. Bwriad hyn yw rhoi sicrwydd i'r aelodau a'r cyhoedd ynghylch y 
safonau a ddisgwylir. Ychwanegodd mai rôl Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus 
Cymru (PSOW) oedd ystyried a, lle bo hynny'n briodol, cynnal ymchwiliadau annibynnol 
i gwynion difrifol bod aelodau awdurdodau lleol yng Nghymru wedi torri'r Cod. Wrth 
benderfynu a ddylid ymchwilio i gŵyn neu a ddylid parhau ag ymchwiliad i achos o dorri'r 
Cod, mae'r PSOW yn defnyddio prawf dau gam.

Esboniodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd fod y canllawiau 
drafft diwygiedig (ynghlwm fel Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad) wedi'u cyhoeddi ym mis Chwefror 
2021 a rhoddodd esboniad o’r prawf dau gam diwygiedig a fyddai'n cael ei ystyried a'i 
ddefnyddio. Roedd hefyd yn cynnwys arweiniad ar ddefnyddio cyfryngau cymdeithasol a 
mynegiant gwleidyddol, a'i nod oedd rhoi cymorth i'r Aelodau o ran eu buddiannau, a 
oedd yn heriol i rai aelodau.

Dywedodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd bod Aelodau'n 
cael cynnig hyfforddiant ar y Cod a bod digwyddiadau hyfforddi gloywi pellach wedi’u 
cynnal yn ddiweddar ym mis Ionawr 2021. Roedd y PSOW yn disgwyl i'r holl Aelodau 
fynychu hyfforddiant a derbyn cyngor fel y rhoddwyd, lle/pan gynigiwyd hynny.

PENDERFYNWYD:           Bod y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd wedi nodi'r 
adroddiad a Chanllawiau Cod Ymddygiad drafft PSOW 
ynghlwm fel Atodiad 1 i'r adroddiad.

195. ADOLYGIAD O STRATEGAETH DYSGU A DATBLYGU AELODAU ETHOLEDIG A 
RHAGLEN SEFYDLU AELODAU ETHOLEDIG

Cyflwynodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd adroddiad, a'i 
bwrpas oedd: 

 adolygu Strategaeth Dysgu a Datblygu Aelodau Etholedig; 

 ystyried Fframweithiau Sefydlu a Datblygu drafft Cymdeithas Llywodraeth Leol 
Cymru (CLlLC).

Esboniodd fod y Cyngor wedi cymeradwyo’r Strategaeth ym mis Tachwedd 2017 ac ers 
y dyddiad hwnnw, roedd wedi darparu'r fframwaith ar gyfer darparu a chyflwyno 

Page 7



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 25 MAWRTH 2021

prosesau Datblygu Aelodau ar gyfer Aelodau Etholedig o’u cyfnod sefydlu ac wedi 
hynny trwy gydol eu tymor yn y swydd.

Esboniodd y Rheolwr Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd, gan fod y 
Strategaeth yn dod i ddiwedd ei hoes bresennol ac wrth baratoi ar gyfer Etholiadau 
Llywodraeth Leol 2022 ac ymsefydlu aelodau newydd eu hethol wedi hynny, cynhaliwyd 
adolygiad bwrdd gwaith o'r Strategaeth i sicrhau ei bod yn addas at y diben ac wedi'i 
diweddaru i adlewyrchu nifer o ffactorau a oedd wedi newid ers cymeradwyo'r 
Strategaeth wreiddiol. Rhannwyd y strategaeth arfaethedig yn 5 cam a nodwyd ym 
mharagraff 4.2 o'r adroddiad.

Gofynnodd Rheolwr y Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd i'r Pwyllgor 
ystyried y Strategaeth sydd ynghlwm yn atodiad A a hefyd ystyried a oedd yn cwrdd â'r 
disgwyliadau a'r canlyniadau fel y nodir ym mharagraff 4.6 o'r adroddiad.

Esboniodd ymhellach, fod Fframwaith Sefydlu drafft WLGA sydd ynghlwm yn Atodiad 2 
i'r adroddiad, yn amlinellu'r cwricwlwm ar gyfer sefydlu Aelodau yng Nghymru, yn arwain 
at ac yn dilyn yr etholiadau lleol yn 2022. Ni ddyluniwyd y fframwaith i fod yn rhagnodol 
ond yn hytrach i ddarparu arweiniad ar gyfer yr hyn y dylid ei ystyried wrth ddatblygu 
rhaglenni lleol. Datblygwyd y Fframwaith gan awdurdodau lleol yng Nghymru sy'n 
gweithio gyda'r CLlLC. Ychwanegodd bod Fframwaith Datblygu drafft CLlC yn Atodiad 3 
i’r adroddiad a bod hwn yn amlinellu'r hyn a ddisgwylid gan Aelodau o ran gwybodaeth 
a'u hymddygiad. Mae rhagor o wybodaeth am y fframweithiau wedi'u cynnwys ym 
mharagraffau 4.9 a 4.10 o'r adroddiad. 

Gofynnodd Aelod, ar ddiwrnod yr etholiad pan gyhoeddwyd y canlyniadau, ei fod yn 
brofiad dysgu. Gofynnodd a fyddai’n bosibl creu dogfen wybodaeth fer fel y byddai 
Aelodau etholedig yn gwybod pa ddogfennaeth yr oedd ei hangen arnynt, h.y. manylion 
cyswllt hanfodol a phecyn Sefydlu Aelodau ynghyd â gwybodaeth allweddol a defnyddiol 
arall, ac ati. 

Dywedodd Rheolwr y Grŵp Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd fod pecyn 
sefydlu yn cael ei ddarparu i Aelodau sydd newydd eu hethol naill ai ar noson yr 
etholiadau yn y Cyfrif, neu cyn gynted â phosibl wedi hynny. Fodd bynnag, byddai'n 
edrych i weld pa wybodaeth a ddarparwyd, i weld a ellid gwella neu ychwanegu at hyn.

Esboniodd yr Aelod y gallai papur byr a oedd â gwybodaeth generig ynddo ar gyfer yr 
holl Aelodau hefyd gael ei ddarparu, er mwyn i Gynghorwyr gael syniad o'r hyn i'w 
ddisgwyl pan ddaethant yn Aelod CBSPAO, ac y byddai'n ddefnyddiol cyn derbyn y 
pecyn sefydlu, oherwydd ei bod weithiau yn cymryd nifer o ddyddiau i’w gasglu o'r 
Gwasanaethau Democrataidd yn achos rhai Aelodau, yn dibynnu ar yr amser yr oedd y 
Cyfrif wedi gorffen neu pryd y gallent ymweld â Swyddfeydd Dinesig i gasglu eu pecyn 
Sefydlu, yn dilyn dyddiad yr etholiad. 

PENDERFYNWYD:                 Bod y Pwyllgor Gwasanaethau Democrataidd:

 wedi adolygu'r Strategaeth sydd ynghlwm fel Atodiad 1 a chymeradwyo ei 
chyflwyno i'r Cyngor i'w chymeradwyo; 

 wedi ystyried Fframweithiau Sefydlu a Datblygu drafft CLlLC sydd ynghlwm fel 
Atodiad 2 a 3 i'r adroddiad.

196. EITEMAU BRYS

Dim.

Page 8



PWYLLGOR GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD - DYDD IAU, 25 MAWRTH 2021

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2021

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

ANNUAL REPORT 

1. Purpose of report

1.1 To provide the Democratic Services Committee with the Annual Report for the 
period May 2020 to May 2021. The report outlines the work of the Committee during 
that period.

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-  

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county. 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 The Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 requires each council to establish a
Democratic Services Committee. The Measure prescribes the functions of the 
committee and requires the committee to make a report at least annually to the 
Council.  

3.2 The Democratic Services Committee cannot discharge any other functions or 
perform any dual role.  

4. Current situation/proposal

4.1 Councillor E Venables was originally elected Chair of the Democratic Services 
Committee at the Annual Meeting of Council in May 2018 and has been re-elected 
annually ever since. 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



4.2 The Committee is serviced by the Head of Democratic Services. 

4.3 Membership of the Democratic Services Committee

4.3.1 The Membership of the Democratic Services Committee for the period May 2020 to 
May 2021 is as follows:

Councillor Councillor 

Cllr E Venables (Chair) Cllr G Thomas 
Cllr S Aspey Cllr SR Vidal
Cllr RM Granville Cllr MC Voisey
Cllr DG Howells Cllr A Williams 
Cllr RM James Cllr B Sedgebeer
Cllr SG Smith

4.3.2 Following the Annual Meeting of Council on 19 May 2021, Cllr R Young replaced 
Cllr RM Granville on the Committee. 

4.4 Dates of the Democratic Services Committee Meetings 

4.4.1 The Committee met on these dates during May 2020 to May 2021:

 4 November 2020
 25 March 2021 

4.5 Democratic Services Committee Terms of Reference 

4.5.1 The remit of the Democratic Services Committee is set out under the Local 
Government (Wales) Measure and is to:

 Designate an officer as the Head of Democratic Services;
 Review the adequacy of provision by the Authority of staff, accommodation and 

other resources to discharge Democratic Services functions;
 Make reports and recommendations to the Authority in relation to such provision;
 At the request of the Authority review any matter relevant to the support and advice 

available to members of the Council, and the terms and conditions of office of those 
members;

 Determine whether or not the Councillors period of family absence should be 
cancelled in accordance with Regulation 34 of the Measure;

 Determine whether nor to withhold a Councillor’s Remuneration should they fail to 
return following a period of family absence on the date specified in the notice 
provided. 

4.6 Activities of the Democratic Services Committee for the period May 2020 to 
May 2021

4.6.1 In November 2020, the Committee considered the draft Independent Remuneration 
Panel for Wales (IRPW) Annual Report and provided a draft response which was 
considered by Council prior to submission to the IRPW. 

Page 12



4.6.2 The Committee undertook a review of the Elected Member Learning and 
Development Strategy and endorsed its submission to Council for approval. 

4.6.3 The Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales has urged all Democratic Services 
Committees across Wales to take steps to encourage and facilitate greater use of 
the Costs of Care provision so that Members are not financially disadvantaged.  A 
report was presented to the Committee on 21 March 2021 and the Committee 
recommended the promotion of the CPA provision throughout the Authority with this 
work beginning with the Annual Report presented to Council on 10 March 2021 and 
the report of the Committee on 21 March 2021.  

4.6.4 A report was presented to the Committee on 21 March 2021 outlining the 
performance of Member Referrals. A Member Referrals Project Board was 
established to consider whether the current system is fit for purpose.  In pursuance 
of this, an online Councillor Portal and built in member referral process will be rolled 
out to a pilot group of Members including those Members sitting on the Committee.  

4.6.5 Throughout the year the Committee considered the Member Development 
Programme and identified topics, briefings and e-learning topics for inclusion in the 
programme and prioritised them accordingly.  

4.7 Democratic Services Team for the period May 2020 to May 2021

4.7.1 The current structure for the Democratic Services Team is set out below:

 Democratic Services Manager (with the statutory post of Head of Democratic 
Services) (Grade 12) 

 Senior Democratic Services Officer – Committees (Grade 10) 
 Democratic Services Officer – Committees x 2 (Grade 6) 
 Senior Democratic Services Officer – Scrutiny (Grade 10) 
 Scrutiny Officer x 2 (Grade 9)
 Senior Democratic Services Officer – Support (Grade 10) 
 Democratic Services Assistant x 2 (Grade 4) 
 Democratic Services Officer – Leadership, Members and Mayoral (Grade 7) 
 Chauffeur (Grade 5) 
 Casual Chauffeur x2 (Grade 5) 

4.7.2 The provision of staff, accommodation and other resources by the Council is 
adequate to discharge the statutory requirements in relation to decision making, 
democratic administration and Scrutiny as they currently exist. However, the impact 
of any changes in statutory requirements, or the needs of Members, will need to be 
kept under review by the Committee.  

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 There will be no effect on the policy framework and procedure rules.  

6. Equality Act 2010 implications

6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act 2010, Socio-
economic Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been 
considered in the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council 

Page 13



must consider the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the 
review of policies, strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will 
be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report.  It is considered that there is no significant or unacceptable impact upon the 
achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.  

8.1 Financial implications

8.1 There are no financial implications arising from this report. There are no specific 
costs associated with the running of this committee other than those involved in the 
cost of administration of this and other council functions within the democratic 
process. 

9. Recommendation

9.1 To consider the content of the Annual Report and endorse submission to full 
Council for approval.  

L Griffiths  
Group Manager – Legal and Democratic Services 

Contact Officer: L Griffiths 
Group Manager - Legal and Democratic Services 

Telephone: (01656) 643145

E-mail: laura.griffiths@bridgend.gov.uk 

Background documents: None

Page 14



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2021

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

DIVERSITY IN DEMOCRACY

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee of the WLGA Council 
‘Diversity in Democracy’ report and Bridgend’s draft Diversity in Democracy Action 
Plan and consider what the Council can do to raise awareness and promotion of the 
role of Members, to reduce potential barriers to becoming an Elected Member with 
the aim of encouraging future candidates from diverse backgrounds to come 
forward for Election.  

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-  

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county. 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 The lack of diverse representation in local authorities is a problem that has been 
recognised for decades.  A more diverse democracy and elected representatives 
who are more reflective and understanding of their communities leads to better 
engagement with individuals and communities, in turn leading to greater levels of 
confidence and trust and better decision making informed by a wider range of 
perspectives and lived experiences.  

3.2 The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) has committed to making a 
change in local government diversity at the 2022 local elections as it is 
acknowledged that despite previous action and campaigns, progress has been slow 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



and it is recognised that there remains a lack of diversity in councils.  Data shows 
that in Wales’ local authorities: 

• 28% of councillors and 29% of Cabinet members are women
• Councillors are proportionately older than the general adult population (47% of 
councillors were aged 60 years or older) and a higher proportion of councillors were 
retired (31%)
• Only about 1.8% of councillors are Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
compared to 4.7% for the Welsh population and few hold senior positions 
• 11% of councillors stated that they had a disability, and there remain a range of 
challenges for disabled people participating in the democratic process.  

3.3 The evidence base, barriers and challenges to attracting more diverse councillors 
were referenced in the WLGA’s submission to the Senedd’s Equality, Local 
Government and Communities Committee Inquiry into diversity in local government 
in September 2018. The barriers and challenges can broadly be summarised as: 

• Time-commitment and meeting times 
• Political and organisational culture 
• Childcare and other caring responsibilities 
• Public criticism and online abuse 
• Remuneration and impact on employment and
• Lack of diverse role models and incumbency.  

3.4 Much work has been undertaken in the last decade in Wales to measure and 
improve the diversity of councils.  There is a national communications campaign to 
encourage people from underrepresented groups to vote, engage with local 
democracy and stand for office.  New mentoring programmes are also being 
delivered with the Womens’ Equality Network Wales and Ethnic Minorities and 
Youth Support Team Wales.  Stonewall Cymru and Disability Wales are also soon 
to be offering mentoring programmes.  The Welsh Government and Senedd 
Commission are also working with Councils, schools and youth councils and 
developing resources to encourage 16 and 17 year olds to get involved and vote. 
The WLGA has a new “Be a Councillor website” and, is part of the Pan UK civility in 
public life campaign and are working with councils to continue to improve the range 
of support and development provided to members. 

4. Current situation/proposal

4.1 The WLGA has committed to making a step change in local government diversity at 
the 2022 local elections. At a Special Meeting on 5th March the WLGA Council 
endorsed its ‘Diversity in Democracy report’ (attached as Appendix 1). The report 
was the culmination of the work of a cross-party working group and builds on the 
action plans and ambitions of both councils and partners. WLGA will take forward 
several actions nationally, as outlined within the report including: 

 The launch of the “Be a Councillor” website (already in place);

 Representations made to political parties to take action and make progress;

 Representation to Welsh Government and the Independent Remuneration Panel for 
Wales that councillors should be entitled to ‘resettlement grants’ should they lose 
their seat at an election.  

Page 16



4.2 At its meeting, and through its report, the WLGA Council recognised the diversity 
work already underway locally but called for concerted and ambitious local action. 
Through its report and resulting actions it asks councils to prioritise action locally, 
promoting the take-up of members’ allowances and progressing ‘Diverse Council’ 
declarations by the summer. The WLGA Council unanimously agreed that all councils 
should commit to a declaration by July 2021 on becoming ‘Diverse Councils’ in 2022, 
to provide a clear, public commitment to improving diversity. 

4.3 The WLGA Council discussed the merits of positive action and there was support for 
the use of voluntary quotas in local elections; this is a matter for local groups and 
parties but where such voluntary approaches have been adopted in the past, there 
has been significant progress in terms of gender balance. The WLGA Council also 
unanimously agreed that councils should set targets to be representative of the 
communities they serve at the next elections.

4.4 Councils’ local diversity work will be supported by a national awareness raising, 
publicity and support through the WLGA and Welsh Government. WLGA officials 
will be meeting with Heads of Democratic Services to share ideas and approaches 
to develop local declarations and action plans.  

4.5 As part of the commitment from Bridgend County Borough Council (BCBC) to 
support the Diversity in Democracy agenda, all members were asked to complete a 
diversity and inclusion survey during May 2021.  The headline figures are outlined 
below: 

 73% of respondents stated their motivation to stand as a local councillor was to 
serve the community

 56% of respondents stated they do intend to stand for re-election at the end of their 
term 

 70% of respondents either strongly agreed (26%) or agreed (44%) that Bridgend 
County Borough Council is committed to ensuring all members, officers and 
residents are treated with equal dignity and respect

 76% of respondents either strongly agreed (14%) or agreed (62%) that the council 
is an inclusive place to work for officers and members

 76% of respondents either strongly agreed (33%) or agreed (43%) that people from 
different backgrounds are readily accepted and made to feel welcome in the council

 58% of respondents either strongly agreed (24%) or agreed (34%) that people at all 
levels within the council are respected, regardless of their role

 70% of respondents either strongly agreed (18%) or agreed (52%) that there is real 
commitment within the council to improve performance on equality and diversity

 91% of respondents either strongly agreed (36%) or agreed (55%) that they are 
comfortable talking about their background and cultural experiences with their 
colleagues

 76% of respondents either strongly agreed (30%) or agreed (46%)  that they are 
confident appropriate actions would be taken to tackle diversity and inclusion 
incidents

Page 17



 73% of respondents either strongly agreed (30%) or agreed (43%) that they know 
where to register complaints regarding discrimination and harassment

 85% of respondents either strongly agreed (30%) or agreed (55%) that the council 
has policies that discourage harassment and discrimination

 73% of respondents either strongly agreed (26%) or agreed (47%) that the council 
has done a good job providing training programs that promote diversity and 
inclusion

 35% of respondents were aged 65-74, 23% of respondents were aged 55-64 and 
18% of respondents were aged 25-34 

 82% of respondents stated they do not consider themselves to be disabled.
 53% of respondents stated their nationality as Welsh and 38% stated their 

nationality as British
 94% of respondents stated their ethnic group as white
 47% of respondents stated their religion was Christian, 41% chose no religion
 71% of respondents stated their sex as male and 29% stated their sex as female
 100% of respondents stated that the gender they identify with is the same as their 

sex registered at birth
 85% of respondents stated their sexual orientation was heterosexual/ straight.
 56% of respondents stated their marital status as married
 70% of respondents stated that they did not have caring responsibilities
 83% of respondents stated that they did not have children living in their household
 30% of respondents described their employment status as full time employed and 

27% stated retired
 94% of respondents stated that neither they nor a member of their household were 

either serving in the armed forces or an armed forces service leaver (veteran)
 56% of respondents stated they could not speak Welsh at all, 66% of respondents 

stated they could not read Welsh at all, and 81% of respondents stated they could 
not write Welsh at all

 74% of respondents stated they are not able to speak other languages

The survey results will support the work to make the Council more diverse, provide 
a better understanding of the support people may need and help to support equality 
and fairness. 

4.6 It is important that BCBC is committed to increasing diversity, which includes 
tackling the barriers which prevent an individual’s active participation in local 
democracy.  Work on a Diversity Declaration, bespoke to the Council will be taken 
forward and presented to the July Council meeting, to meet the required timescales 
set by the WLGA.  

4.7 Attached as Appendix 2 is a draft Diversity in Democracy Action Plan which will be 
updated accordingly ahead of the 2022 local elections.    The Plan has been drafted 
to illustrate Welsh Government’s overall objectives and a combination of Welsh 
Government derived actions for local authorities to drive forward and also proposed 
actions that are bespoke to the Council.  

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

Page 18



5.1 There will be no effect on the policy framework and procedure rules.  

6. Equality Act 2010 implications

6.1 The work of BCBC and the WLGA looks to improve the equality and diversity across 
the County Borough and within the local democracy setting. The more representative 
of society and diverse Elected Members are the better understanding they will have 
of the needs of the local community and therefore are better equipped at carrying out 
their duties and responsibilities. 

6.2 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act 2010, Socio-
economic Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been 
considered in the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council 
must consider the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the 
review of policies, strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will 
be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The well-being goals identified in the Act were considered in the preparation of this 
report.  It is considered that there is no significant or unacceptable impact upon the 
achievement of well-being goals/objectives as a result of this report.  Ensuring that 
there are greater opportunities for a more diverse democracy across BCBC links to 
the goals of a more equal Wales and a Wales of cohesive communities. 

8.1 Financial implications

8.1 The awareness raising opportunities referenced within the local action plan can be 
delivered through platforms already available to the Council. In respect of 
‘resettlement grants’ proposed by the WLGA there may be financial implications, 
but details are unknown at present.

9. Recommendation

9.1 The Committee is recommended to consider the proposed actions outlined in the 
WLGA Special Report and the BCBC draft Action Plan and consider what the 
Council can do to raise awareness and promotion of the role of Members, to reduce 
potential barriers to becoming an Elected Member with the aim of encouraging 
future candidates from diverse backgrounds to come forward for Election.  

L Griffiths  
Group Manager – Legal and Democratic Services 

Contact Officer: L Griffiths 
Group Manager - Legal and Democratic Services 

Telephone: (01656) 643145

E-mail: laura.griffiths@bridgend.gov.uk 

Page 19



Background documents: 
Diversity in Democracy – Data Report

Page 20



1 

WLGA COUNCIL SPECIAL MEETING 
5th March 2021 

WLGA WORKING GROUP ON DIVERSITY IN 
LOCAL DEMOCRACY 

Purpose 

1. To report on the work undertaken by the WLGA Cross Party Working Group on
Diversity in Local Democracy and seek Council’s endorsement of proposals to
achieve a ‘step change’ at the 2022 local elections.

Summary 

2. WLGA Council agreed in September 2018 to take steps to advance gender
equality and diversity in Councils before the 2022 elections. This was in
recognition of the lack of diversity in Welsh Councils .   A cross party working
group was set up to explore broader underrepresentation in democracy.

3. It is now widely acknowledged that equal representation is not only an issue of
representational fairness but essential for the quality of policy development and
decision making. Decisions will be better when they are taken by people with
lived experience of an issue. The ‘right person for the job’ of councillor needs to
be a member of the community they serve, in order to fully and consistently
understand the lives and needs of that community.  Councils also need to
demonstrate to underrepresented communities that they are valued and included
in local democracy.

4. Much work has been undertaken in the last decade in Wales to measure and
improve the diversity of councils. More work is in the pipeline in preparation for
the 2022 elections. There is a national communications campaign to encourage
people from underrepresented groups to vote, engage with local democracy and
stand for office. New mentoring programmes are being delivered with the
Womens’ Equality Network Wales and  the Ethnic Minorities and Youth Support
Team Wales.   Stonewall Cymru and Disability Wales will also soon be offering
mentoring programmes. The Welsh Government and Senedd Commission are
working with Councils, schools and youth councils and developing resources to
encourage 16 and 17 yr olds to get involved and vote. The WLGA has a new Be a
Councillor website and, is part of the Pan UK civility in public life campaign and
are working with Councils to continue to improve the range of support and
development provided to members.

Page 21



2 
 

5. In previous elections councils have worked hard to encourage underrepresented 
groups to stand with their own outreach, mentoring schemes and information 
days. They have done much to improve the support provided for serving 
councillors and provide them with guidance, development and better working 
conditions.  More recently we have worked together as a local government family 
to support members suffering abuse and harassment.  
 

6. The Working Group found, and national and international research shows, that 
this comprehensive activity will not be enough to make change at the pace 
required.  This report outlines the additional activities that could make a 
difference.  
 

7. There are three main areas for action:  
 
• Encouraging councils to ensure all councillors receive their full entitlement 

to allowances and salaries, and encouraging the introduction of 
resettlement grants, so that all members receive fair remuneration for 
their work and that the role of member is not limited to those who can 
afford it 

• An agreement by councils to undertake new or developed work in this 
area and visibly commit to this by signing up to becoming Diverse 
Councils.  

• To discuss positions and making representation to political parties and 
acting locally to set quotas and/or voluntary targets for the election of 
councillors from underrepresented groups.  

 

Background 

8. WLGA Council first received this report at its meeting on 27th November 2020.  
Given the significance of the report and the issues considered and due to the 
congested agenda at the November Council, members agreed to defer the report 
to a later and dedicated meeting in early 2021.  
 

9. At its meeting on 28th September 2018, WLGA Council committed to advance 
gender equality and diversity in local democracy ahead of the 2022 local 
elections.  

10. WLGA Council agreed to establish a cross party working group to develop an 
action plan and to identify possible actions for consideration by WLGA Council. 
The Membership of the Group is at Annex A. Not all members were able to 
attend all meetings, however, contributed to the work via discussions with 
officers. The WLGA Equalities Cabinet Members Network has also fed into the 
work of the group. 

Page 22



3 
 

11. The working group did not commission additional research or evidence gathering 
as there have been several reviews in recent years. The working group 
considered recommendations which have emerged from research undertaken in 
2018-19 by the Women’s Equalities Network, Chwarae Teg, the Senedd’s 
Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee, the Welsh Government 
including the review of its Diversity in Democracy programme, the Fawcett 
Society, the Electoral Reform Society, and the British Council. Further research 
and reports, including engagement and research through the Welsh 
Government’s developing Race Equality Action Plan and Race Alliance Wales’ ‘Do 
the Right Thing’ report (January 2021)1, have informed this report.  

12. The evidence base, barriers and challenges to attracting more diverse councillors 
were referenced in the WLGA’s submission to the Senedd’s Equality, Local 
Government and Communities Committee Inquiry into diversity in local 
government in September 20182. The barriers and challenges can broadly be 
summarised as:  

• Time-commitment and meeting times; 
• Political and organisational culture; 
• Childcare and other caring responsibilities; 
• Public criticism and online abuse; 
• Remuneration and impact on employment; and 
• Lack of diverse role models and incumbency 

 
13. The working group also considered the legislation proposed in the Local 

Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 and considered the views from 
various groups through the Diversity in Democracy roundtables of stakeholders, 
convened by the Minister for Housing and Local Government, where the WLGA 
was previously represented by Cllr Debbie Wilcox and, subsequently, by Cllr Mary 
Sherwood.  

14. The WLGA supported and participated in regional diversity in democracy 
stakeholder events held by the Welsh Government in the autumn of 2019 which 
sought views from under-represented groups from across Wales.  

15. Senior WLGA and local government members also participated in an Electoral 
Reform Society ‘Equal Power Equal Voice’ Roundtable debate in October 2020 
which sought to explore some of the barriers around diversity, including quotas.  

 

 
1Race Alliance Wales ‘Do The Right Thing’ research report on racialised representation in public and 
political life (January 2021) - Full research paper (https://bit.ly/3qpU4Rm) Executive summary 
(https://bit.ly/3bPtfCk) 

 
2 https://www.wlga.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=62&fileid=1852&mid=665 

Page 23

https://bit.ly/3qpU4Rm
https://bit.ly/3bPtfCk


4 
 

Progress remains slow 

16. Data shows that there remains a significant lack of diversity in Welsh councils. In 
Wales’ local authorities: 

• 28% of councillors and 29% of Cabinet members are women.  
• Councillors are proportionately older than the general adult population (47% 

of councillors were aged 60 years or older) and a higher proportion of 
councillors were retired (31%).  

• Only about 1.8% of councillors are Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) 
compared to 4.7% for the Welsh population and few hold senior positions.  

• 11% of councillors stated that they had a disability, and there remain a range 
of challenges for disabled people participating in the democratic process. 
 

17. There has been some small progress, however, the leadership of Welsh local 
government is more diverse than ever before, though we recognise it is not fully 
reflective of wider society; there are 6 women leaders (up from 2 in 2017) and 6 
women Deputy Leaders, a quarter of leaders are below the age of 45 and 2 
leaders and several senior councillors have featured in Pride Cymru’s ‘Pinc List’ in 
recent years.  

18. The Black Lives Matter movement and wider Welsh Government commissioned 
working groups on the impact of COVID-19 on BAME people has demonstrated 
the barriers and challenges faced by of a significant proportion of society and 
highlighted the need to make visible progress in policy, leadership and, in 
particular, political representation.  

19. The Report of the Welsh Government’s BAME Covid-19 Socioeconomic Subgroup, 
chaired by Professor Emmanuel Ogbonna observed: 

“The overall theme that ran through the factors discussed in this report is the 
impact of longstanding racism and disadvantage and lack of BAME 
representation within decision making to effect better socio-economic 
outcomes. Although many of the issues highlighted have been identified and 
discussed previously, they have not been addressed in any systematic and 
sustained way. The coronavirus pandemic is, in some respects, revealing the 
consequences of such inaction on race equality.” 

20. The Socioeconomic Subgroup recommended that: 

“Welsh Government to encourage the political engagement of BAME 
communities by raising awareness and understanding of Welsh and UK 
democratic institutions and processes, with the overall aim of encouraging the 
increase of political representation of BAME communities by also encouraging 
voter registration from BAME communities.”The Welsh Government is also 
developing a Race Equality Action Plan, which will be published for 
consultation in the Spring 2021. This Plan will outline a vision, goals and 
actions to make Wales an anti-racist nation and will prioritise anti-racism and 
greater diversity in leadership and representation.  

Page 24



5 
 

21. In advance of the Race Equality Action Plan, the actions and proposals in this 
report have been informed by WLGA engagement and participation in the Welsh 
Government’s stakeholder and working groups and other race equality 
workstreams. Race Alliance Wales’ ‘Do the Right Thing’ report outlines a range of 
cultural and institutional barriers around participation of racialised people (it uses 
this term as it is argued that BAME people are racialised because of their 
ethnicity) and outlines several recommended actions and commitments for public 
bodies. 

22. Local authorities are also undertaking local reviews or actions in response to 
the issues raised through Black Lives Matter and COVID-19 work reflecting the 
issues. The WLGA leadership has committed to building on local authorities’ work 
and the WLGA will respond to the Race Equality Action Plan when it is published 
for consultation. 

23. The lack of diverse representation in local authorities is a problem that has 
been recognised for decades. A more diverse democracy and elected 
representatives who are more reflective and understanding of their communities 
leads to better engagement with individuals and communities, in turn leading to 
greater levels of confidence and trust and better decision-making informed by a 
wider range of perspectives and lived experiences.  

24. Prominent decision-makers from under-represented groups can be influential 
role models, empowering and encouraging others to aspire to follow in their 
footsteps and to contribute to public life. Similarly, more diverse senior political 
leaders who are more representative of an organisation’s workforce can lead to 
improved workforce engagement, trust in leadership and a more confident 
organisational culture. 

Diversity in Democracy 2017 

25.  Local authorities, the WLGA, Welsh Government and political parties have 
employed a range of measures to encourage greater diversity in candidates and 
councillors. The WLGA supported the Welsh Government-led Diversity in 
Democracy programme ahead of the 2017 elections.  

26. The Diversity in Democracy programme was the biggest and most well-resourced 
programme of its type and was supported by a range of national partners 
including the main political parties. The programme included an awareness and 
promotional campaign, production of literature and online videos for candidates, 
businesses and mentees, working with employers to encourage them to 
encourage and support staff to be councillors and the roll-out of a mentoring 
scheme for people from under-represented groups.  

27. A range of online materials were produced to provide information to candidates 
and councillors, including the WLGA’s Be a Councillor guide and Councillor’s 
Guide and the Welsh Government’s Diversity in Democracy materials which 

Page 25



6 
 

included specific leaflets to encourage businesses to support staff in becoming 
councillors.  

28. The Welsh Government produced a series of online videos with councillors as 
part of the Diversity in Democracy programme and several councils, including 
Gwynedd, Monmouthshire and Powys also produced excellent videos to explain 
the role of councillors and to encourage candidates to stand.  

29. Several councils ran ‘open days’ ahead of the elections and mentoring and 
shadowing programmes are widely regarded as being beneficial, particularly in 
supporting people from under-represented groups to come forward to stand.  

30. A mentoring campaign was the central project within the Diversity in Democracy 
programme and participants received extensive support, advice, training and 
access to serving councillors who acted as mentors. Of the 51 mentees who 
participated, only 16 stood for election and only 4 were elected. However, such a 
‘conversion rate’ suggests that, in future, mentoring and support programmes 
may be a more effective use of resources if they are provided to people who had 
already committed to standing as a candidate. 

Diversity in Democracy 2022 

31. The cross party WLGA working group met three times to consider evidence and 
develop recommendations for consideration by WLGA Council. The working group 
has reviewed the existing evidence, considered what activities councils and the 
WLGA could do to improve diversity in democracy and the role of the Welsh 
Government and political parties.  

32. The Minister for Housing and Local Government also convened a Diversity in 
Democracy roundtable of stakeholders which met twice. During the autumn of 
2019, the Welsh Government organised 4 regional stakeholder events with 95 
people attending, including councillors and officers from town and community 
councils and unitary authorities and third sector including charities, support 
organisations for the disabled, BAME, young people and religious organisations. 
WLGA Officials facilitated roundtable discussions. Key messages were: 

• There was a general lack of awareness of the role and contribution made by 
councillors. 

• Social media abuse directed at councillors is getting worse.  The abuse is 
predominately, but not exclusively aimed at women which has a direct effect 
on diversity in the role.  There was increasing concern the abuse could be 
directed at members of the councillors’ family, which was evidenced by some 
of the experiences of attendees.  

• Training and development are fundamental, but people were not always 
aware of what is available. 

Page 26



7 
 

• Time commitment was a barrier for many people, particularly people with 
family commitments or jobs.  

• Providing help with costs to support individuals stand for election was a 
recurring theme, particularly for disabled people and other individuals from 
protected characteristics groups. Childcare costs were also seen as a barrier 
to campaigning. 

• There was confusion about whether and what councillors are paid and on 
what basis.  There were concerns about the determinations made and how 
individuals were impacted as a result of the interplay between the HMRC, the 
benefits system and the remuneration levels.  Many attendees at the 
workshops felt remuneration of the councillor role does not cover the costs 
associated with the role particularly in town and community councils.  

 

 Action Plan 2020-22  
33. A range of actions emerged from the Ministerial roundtable and the WLGA’s 

working group which are being implemented or planned. These include the 
following (specific WLGA or local authority activity is included in italics): 

Awareness/Value of Role 

34. Councils and councillors have played a critical, central and prominent role during 
the COVID 19 pandemic during 2020. Councils have demonstrated that they are 
uniquely placed at the heart of their communities and public service delivery and 
councils and councillors have invariably been the first port of call for the most 
vulnerable or those in need of support or assurance. The crisis has demonstrated 
councils’ ability to respond irrespective of scale and reaffirmed the importance of 
subsidiarity and localism, with elected members rooted in their local 
communities.  

35. A broad-based communication campaign is in development with the Welsh 
Government and Senedd Commission. This will start with messages about the 
value of democracy and voting aimed at primarily at the newly enfranchised for 
the 2021 Senedd elections. This will develop to focus on the value and 
contribution made by councillors and encouraging participation in local 
democracy.  

36. In parallel to the development of the national campaign Welsh Government will 
work with partners to identify key points/events throughout 2020 to promote 
positive stories about councillors’ contributions and achievements.  

37. Councils and WLGA to develop a consistent and coordinated campaign 
demonstrating how much councillors are valued, developed and supported. 

Page 27



8 
 

38. WLGA has launched a Be a Councillor website https://www.beacouncillor.wales/ 
which will be further developed in 2021 with pen portraits and ‘day in the life’ 
case study videos of councillors from a cross-section of characteristics. It will also 
include an e learning module for people interested in standing to enable them to 
understand the role in more detail and “hit the ground running” should they be 
elected.  

39. Coordinated activity between authorities, including information and awareness 
campaigns and open days, linked to key events such as Local Democracy Week, 
International Women’s Day, Black History Month, Disability Awareness Day, LGBT 
History Month etc.  

40. Targeted WLGA promotional work through Welsh political party conferences in 
2021 

41. Targeted engagement work with third sector organisations to encourage 
discussion and interest in volunteers translating their informal community role 
into an elected community role. The COVID 19 Pandemic has increased the levels 
of voluntary and community-based work. The WLGA will engage with individuals 
and groups who may now wish to continue this work by standing for office.  

Candidate/Councillor Abuse 

42. The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 will facilitate a change in 
the requirement to use personal addresses on ballot papers.  The Act will also 
place a duty on political group leaders to promote high standards of conduct. It 
will also require councils to publish official rather than personal addresses for 
councillors. 

43. The WLGA, in partnership with their colleagues in England, Scotland and 
Northern Ireland, are involved in developing the Civility in Public Life campaign to 
promote mutual respect and promote high standards of conduct. The WLGA, 
working with the LGA, has produced an online Councillors guide for handling 
intimidation https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-handling-intimidation . 

44. The WLGA is working with authorities to encourage an informal but 
comprehensive duty of care for members.  

45. The WLGA is also contacting and providing advice and support to individual 
councillors who receive online abuse and, where appropriate, issuing supportive 
messages challenging online abuse via social media. 

Training and Development 

46. The WLGA, with authorities, will continue to review current and future training 
provision. This will include a focus on new ways of delivering support and 
development post COVID 19.  

Page 28

https://www.beacouncillor.wales/
https://www.beacouncillor.wales/
https://www.local.gov.uk/councillors-guide-handling-intimidation


9 
 

47. Work will be undertaken to identify ways in which ex councillors can use their 
experience and skills to enhance their CVs or continue to use their skills and 
experience through involvement with training / support mechanisms.  

48. The National “curriculum” for member induction is being updated. This overview 
of what members would find useful to learn is agreed with councils and includes 
subjects considered mandatory. As well as traditional subjects like Ethics and 
Standards, The Well-being of Future Generations and Scrutiny skills, this will now 
include unconscious bias, personal safety and remote working skills.  

49. A new online Councillors Guide will be developed for Councillors for the 2022 
elections. 

50. The suite of National e Learning modules specifically developed for members 
which is freely available via the NHS learning@wales website will be updated for 
the 2022 elections. This work is being undertaken by authorities working 
together with the WLGA and is particularly important as a result of the changes 
to working and learning practice as a result of the Pandemic.    

51. The national Competency framework for elected members is now being 
developed prior to the 2022 elections to include new requirements such as the 
understanding of unconscious bias, civility, remote meeting attendance and ICT 
skills.  

52. Councils undertake personal development review with members to personalise 
training support. WLGA offers guidance and training in how to conduct PDRs  

53. The Leadership programme for elected members developed and delivered with 
LGA and Academi Wales is being re commissioned and refreshed. There are 
challenges associated with delivering the programme in the current climate which 
will be addressed as part of the commission.   

Mentoring 

54. Welsh Government officials are working with disability and equality organisations 
such as the Ethnic Minorities and Youth Support Team Wales, Disability Wales 
and Stonewall Cymru to scope the requirement for a Wales wide mentoring 
scheme which includes all protected characteristics. Several mentoring schemes 
are already organised by a range of third sector organisations, these will be 
aligned and coordinated, with resources and learning shared. 

55. Work will be undertaken to explore work shadowing/apprenticeships and other 
opportunities to expose individuals to the work of councils which taken together 
will form a pathway to participation. 

56. The WLGA has promoted and is supporting mentoring schemes run by EYST and 
the Women’s Equality Network Wales. Several councillors have participated as 
mentors in these programmes.  

Page 29



10 
 

57. Newly elected members are offered mentors when they join the council (WLGA 
provides guidance and training for member mentors). 

58. There are opportunities for individual councils/councillors to provide shadowing 
and mentoring opportunities for people interested in standing for office ahead of 
the 2022 local elections. 

Flexibility  

59. The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 includes a range of 
provisions to support flexible ways of working including making provision for job 
sharing and strengthening the remote attendance arrangements.  

60. Welsh Government Officials are now working with WLGA and LA officials to 
consider how the legislation and arrangements made for meetings to be held 
remotely could be extended to improve flexibility and access for a wider range of 
councillors.  

61. Local authorities’ rapid adoption of virtual meetings via platforms such as Teams, 
Webex or Zoom during COVID 19 has transformed the way councils do business. 
Meetings are more accessible for many members, significantly reducing travel 
commitments and time, allowing members to attend meetings from work and, in 
the main, from home. Whilst there are potential impacts on ‘work-life’ balance 
and setting boundaries between council work and home-life, this approach has 
provided greater flexibility for members with caring responsibilities. Virtual 
meetings have also encouraged a less formal and flexible approach to meetings. 
Councils have bid for WG funding to facilitate digital engagement through the 
Digital Democracy Fund. 

62. The LGA have produced a tool to enable women, parents and carers to become 
councillors and has a range of ideas that could be adopted in councils including a 
way of assessing the councils support for diverse councillors. 
https://www.local.gov.uk/twenty-first-century-councils 

Supporting individuals with protected characteristics  

63. The Welsh Government plans to introduce an Access to Elected Office fund to 
assist disabled people to stand for elected office in Wales at the 2021 Senedd 
and 2022 local elections.. 

64. The Welsh Government recently consulted on this proposal and the WLGA and 
several authorities were supportive. The Working Group also suggested that 
learning from this initiative could be used to inform any future access funds such 
as for childcare for candidates. 

Education  

65. Welsh Government and Senedd Commission has developed a set of educational 
resources to accompany the extension of the franchise to 16- and 17-year-olds in 

Page 30

https://www.local.gov.uk/twenty-first-century-councils


11 
 

Wales which will focus on knowledge of and participation in democracy in Wales. 
This is freely available to schools and other education settings via an online 
resource Hwb 

66. Work is being undertaken to identify ways in which schools in Wales can use the 
new curriculum to highlight and promote participation and engagement with local 
democracy.  

67. Councils will continue to engage with schools, including links with school councils 
and Youth Councils. 

68. Councils are also using the Electoral Reform Support Grant to engage with newly 
enfranchised groups to help them understand the democratic process and 
encourage them to register and vote. 

Remuneration  

69. In response to concerns raised by WLGA Leaders, the Independent 
Remuneration Panel is identifying the key issues in relation to taxation and 
benefits applying to members and will prepare a paper for Welsh Government. 

70. The Minister for Housing and Local Government has raised the tax issues with 
the Independent Remuneration Panel for Wales to explore potential solutions. 

71. The Welsh Government has committed to explore with the Independent 
Remuneration Panel for Wales the case for payments in respect of councillors 
who lose their seats at election and present options to Ministers. This is an issue 
that has been raised as a concern by leaders, as councillors (and in particular 
full-time senior councillors), are at significant personal, financial risk if they lose 
their seat.  

Making a Step Change in 2022 

72. The above proposed work programme outlines a range of awareness raising, 
engagement and support activities. Many similar activities were delivered during 
the Diversity in Democracy programme ahead of the 2017 elections.  

73. However, despite some progress, improvement was marginal at the at the 2017 
elections: 

• the number of candidates increased by 5.6% (3,463 candidates compared 
to 3,279 in 2012 (including Anglesey candidates in 2013). 

• 29% of all candidates were women (up by 1% from 2012).  
• 28% of councillors elected were women (up 2% from 2012). 
• 32% of all newly elected members were women). 

 

Page 31



12 
 

74. Uncontested seats at the 2017 elections remained high at 92 (7%) seats 
uncontested. This was fewer than in 2012, when there were 99 (8%) seats 
uncontested, but this continues to undermine local democracy. 

75. Compared to the 2017 programme, Diversity in Democracy 2022 will include 
refinements and more targeted activity based on evaluations and lessons 
learned, along with some new, additional work such as the Civility in Public Life 
campaign. 

76. The WLGA working group has shaped and is supportive of the proposed 
programme of activities outlined above, however it concluded that the 
programme on its own is unlikely to see significant improvements, 
particularly without clear leadership, commitment and coordinated 
actions from the main political parties.  

77. The working group has considered several more significant proposals 
which might have a more positive impact on diversity and the number 
of candidates in 2022.  

78. The views of Council are therefore sought on the following additional 
actions. 

The Role of Political Parties 

79. The working group recognised that independent councillors were a key feature of 
Welsh local government. It also recognised that political parties provided the 
majority of candidates at local elections and therefore play a key role and have 
significant responsibility in encouraging a more diverse range of candidates. 

80. The working group noted that political parties have different policies and views 
about the introduction of quotas, all women shortlists, selection of diverse 
candidates in winnable seats or other positive-action initiatives.  

81. There are, however, a range of good practice initiatives that political parties 
could undertake to encourage and support more diverse candidates both locally 
and nationally: 

• Review party selection criteria e.g. reducing the length of membership before 
members can stand for office. 

• Local parties can establish fora and run events/socials/training sessions for 
underrepresented groups. Helping these groups understand what the role of 
councillor is about, that their participation is required and how to stand plus 
the support that will be available once in office. 

• Parties could establish ‘Diversity Grants’ to support people from 
underrepresented groups (who will not benefit from the Access to elected 
office fund) to stand.  

Page 32



13 
 

• Existing councillors from underrepresented groups can be put forward for 
public events on panels, as speakers or as chairs to raise the profile of 
members from underrepresented groups and enable them to be role models 
for their communities. 

• Talent spotting and engaging with communities working with community 
leaders from underrepresented groups, encouraging people shadow, be 
mentored and stand for election. 

• Promoting and signposting of information and materials, such as those 
available via parties or national bodies such as the WLGA. 

• Establish respect protocols for behaviour within the Group reflecting that 
required in councils and for the Code of Conduct with sanctions for people not 
meeting standards or undertaking training in respect. 

• Encourage political parties and local groups, including officials those with a 
responsibility in the selection process to undertake unconscious bias training. 

• Encourage political parties to provide by-stander training for candidates and 
party members, to understand how to provide support to diverse candidates 
and challenge any abuse, such as disability hate crime or racism, that may be 
experienced on the doorstep (this was a proposal that emerged from the 
Electoral Reform Society roundtable in October 2020), 

82. It is recommended that WLGA Council agrees to encourage all political parties, 
through the WLGA Political Groups, to commit to proactive and coordinated 
activities such as those listed at paragraph 74 above to improve diversity in local 
government democracy.  

Resettlement grants or ‘parachute payments’  
83. Councillors are one of the only paid public roles that do not have financial 

protection and are not entitled to receive a ‘redundancy’ payment if they lose 
office at an election. Members of the Senedd and Members of Parliament receive 
a significant resettlement grant should they lose office at an election. 
Redundancy payments are also a protected right for public sector employees.  

84. In particular, senior councillors tend to be full-time, often have to give up careers 
to focus on their councillor role and many have family as well as other financial 
commitments; the personal risk of a sudden and significant loss of a salary is 
inconsistent and unfair compared to other public roles. It is also a disincentive for 
more diverse people with careers or family responsibilities to consider taking on 
the most senior roles in local government.  

85. The Independent Remuneration Panel has committed to consider this matter and 
explore whether the Welsh Government would need to introduce any legislative 
amendment to empower the Panel to introduce any such payments in future. 

Page 33



14 
 

86. The ‘cost of politics’ and councillors’ remuneration is a controversial matter and is 
subject to significant media and public scrutiny and political pressure. Any 
proposals would therefore have to carefully balance equality, fairness and costs 
and public acceptability. 

87. WLGA leaders have previously raised the matter with the Independent 
Remuneration Panel previously, however the WLGA does not have a formal 
position on resettlement grants for senior salary holders.  

88. It is recommended that WLGA Council adopts a formal position calling 
for the introduction of resettlement grants for senior salary holders. 

Councillors’ allowances and expenses 

89. The Independent Remuneration Panel and some WLGA Leaders have previously 
expressed concern that many members entitled to receive specific expenses, 
such as travel allowances, or reimbursements of costs of care do not make 
claims. Several councillors also decide to forgo parts of their salaries; the 
Independent Remuneration Panel recently wrote to the WLGA noting “…that it is 
an individual’s right to decide that they can take a lesser amount than that 
prescribed as long as there is no pressure applied either directly or subliminally”, 
noting concern, however, that 12% of councillors decided to forgo last year’s 
salary increases. There are concerns that this is partly to do with austerity, public 
and media perception but anecdotally, it is clear that there is also local peer or 
political group pressure or organisational cultural norms. 

90. These allowances are provided to meet councillors’ legitimate costs incurred in 
undertaking their duties and also play a role in encouraging greater diversity; 
some councillors can be disproportionately affected if they are on low income or 
have caring responsibilities. The Independent Remuneration Panel and several 
leaders have expressed concerns about this practice as it may disadvantage 
members who cannot afford to forgo expenses and acts as a disincentive to 
stand/re-stand.  

91. As noted above, the ‘cost of politics’ and councillors’ remuneration is subject to 
significant media and public scrutiny. 

92. It is recommended that the WLGA Council agrees to encourage all 
councillors to claim any necessary allowances or expenses incurred.  

Diverse Councils  

93. The Welsh Government has committed to making Wales a Gender Equal Wales 
and the Cabinet to becoming a Feminist Government, which is a government that 
is: 

• Committed to equality of outcome for all women, men and nonbinary 
people and actively works to drive cultural and structural change  

Page 34



15 
 

• Pro-actively works to advance equality and remove the barriers against all 
women’s participation in the economy, public and social life  

• Puts a gender perspective at the heart of decision-making, resource and 
budget allocation  

• Takes an intersectional approach to all of its work and ensures diversity of 
representation, participation and voice  

• Is people-focused and collaborative, ensuring that all communities are 
meaningfully engaged in its work  

• Is open, transparent and accountable and welcomes scrutiny through a 
gender lens  

• Makes use of policy development and analysis tools to embed gender 
equality into all of its work and actively monitors progress towards equality 
using a robust evidence base  

• Leads by example and supports other public bodies to take action to 
deliver equality. 

94. The Black Lives Matter movement has highlighted global concerns about racism 
and COVID-19 pandemic has exposed the health and socio-economic impacts of 
inequality. Increased representation from BAME people on councils is essential to 
ensure that BAME people are represented and contribute their lived experiences 
to the decision-making process. 

95. Councils’ Strategic Equality Plans outline objectives which demonstrate their 
commitments and planned actions to promote equality and diversity, including as 
employers and representative bodies. Many councils will also undertake a range 
of activities in promoting diversity in democracy ahead of the 2022 local 
elections, as outlined above.  

96. The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 will introduce a new 
‘public participation’ duty on local authorities which will include encouraging 
people to participate in decision-making and promoting awareness of how to 
become a member of the council. Further details of the aspects of the Act 2021 
which contribute to diversity can be found in Annex C 

97. Council meeting times are regularly highlighted as an issue for many serving 
councillors and, occasionally, as a disincentive for some people to stand. Councils 
review their meeting times at least once per term and several allow committees 
to have more flexibility to suit the committee members.  

98. Councillors however have diverse backgrounds and varying personal, caring and 
professional commitments; it is therefore unlikely that council meeting times are 
ever going to be convenient for all members. For example, a councillor who has a 
young child might find it easier to meet during the day, whereas another may 

Page 35



16 
 

prefer to meet in the evening, depending on work commitments, schooling 
arrangements or childcare availability. 

99. An option suggested at the Equality Cabinet Members Network, was that 
meetings of any one committee should be varied over the year between day and 
evening so that members were not always having to take the same time off work 
or arrange childcare.  It was also noted that people should be advised before 
standing that meeting times may vary and could be changed, depending on the 
views of the newly elected councillors. 

100. The potential permanent changes to meeting arrangements so that they can 
be held remotely may reduce the time required for travelling to meetings, 
however members with caring responsibilities may still require staggered meeting 
times as it is still not possible to provide care and attend a meeting 
simultaneously. 

101. The Senedd and Parliament traditionally have recess periods, including a long 
Summer Recess. Approaches to the scheduling of meetings and official council 
business vary across authorities. Some councils have an official Summer recess, 
some do not schedule or scale down council meetings during school holidays. 
Councillors with children in school may be disadvantaged if council meetings are 
scheduled in the holidays, which may also prove to be a disincentive to stand.  

102. The working group have suggested that Councils might, in addition to their 
Strategic Equality Plans commit to becoming Diverse Councils, publishing a 
‘Diversity Declaration’ or a Council Motion outlining their intentions to secure 
equal outcomes for all by working actively to drive cultural and structural change 
and pro-actively working to advance equality and remove the barriers to any 
individual’s participation in the economy, public and social life.  This commitment 
would focus on ensuring that under-represented groups are more active 
participants in engagement and decision making. Demonstrating a public 
commitment to improving diversity and an open and welcoming culture to all in 
advance of the 2022 elections.  

103. A commitment by each local authority to becoming a Diverse Council could 
include  

• Establishing ‘Diversity Ambassadors’ for each political group in the council 
who, working with each other and their local party associations could 
encourage recruitment of members from underrepresented groups.  

• Encouraging and supporting Heads of Democratic Services, Elections 
officers/ Communications teams and /or Democratic Services Committees 
to undertake democratic outreach to promote the role of local councillor 
in, for example, schools or with underrepresented communities.  

104. A draft example of what could be included in a Diverse Council 
Declaration is included at Annex D. It is proposed a draft Declaration, 

Page 36



17 
 

to be adapted and adopted locally, is developed in consultation with 
local authorities and partner organisations.   
 

105. It is recommended that Council  

106. Agrees to encourage a declaration by July 2021 from councils in 
Wales, on becoming ‘Diverse Councils’; to commit to: 

 provide a clear, public commitment to improving diversity; 
 demonstrate an open and welcoming culture to all; 
 consider staggering council meeting times and agreeing recess 

periods to support councillors with other commitments; and 
 set out an action plan of activity ahead of the 2022 local elections. 

 

Diversity Targets 

107. Political parties were encouraged, through the Diversity in Democracy 
programme, to commit to gender targets at the 2017 elections and Welsh 
Labour, for example, committed to fielding women in 40% of winnable seats.  

108. Other initiatives, such as 50-50 by 2020 have previously adopted targets and 
the Welsh Government’s recently published ‘Diversity and inclusion strategy for 
public appointments3’ includes an action for:  

‘Welsh Government to consult and if desired set overall targets across all 
Boards in Wales for BAME, disabled, LGBT+ and young people and 
socioeconomic groups, recognising that individual Boards have varying 
specific requirements.’ 

109. Targets could be included in any ‘Diversity Declaration’ (if such an approach is 
agreed).  

110. There are however mixed views on the value of targets. Targets provide a 
focus, demonstrate an organisation’s ambition and commitment and provide a 
useful ‘hook’ for promotional and public relations purposes. However, targets 
need to be realistic and, as we are starting from a low base in terms of diversity 
of candidates and councillors, such targets may not appear ambitious enough.  

111. Furthermore, whilst councils and the WLGA may seek to set targets to 
demonstrate ambition and commitment and can deliver a range of activities and 
reforms to encourage more candidates, other organisations notably political 
parties have the biggest influence over whether those targets can be achieved. 

 
3 https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-02/diversity-and-inclusion-strategy-for-
public-appointments-action-plan-year1-2020-21_0.pdf  

Page 37

https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-02/diversity-and-inclusion-strategy-for-public-appointments-action-plan-year1-2020-21_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/publications/2020-02/diversity-and-inclusion-strategy-for-public-appointments-action-plan-year1-2020-21_0.pdf


18 
 

Should councils determine local targets, they could therefore be criticized for not 
meeting targets which are largely not in their control.  

112. At a recent meeting of WLGA Group Leaders it was suggested that whilst 
targets at Ward level are difficult, due to recruitment challenges, global targets 
for a whole authority area might be achievable.  

113. It is recommended WLGA Council provides views on the adoption of 
local or national diversity targets. 

Quotas or Reserved Seats 

114. The Local Government Commission in 2017 concluded that “Incumbency in 
local councils disproportionately benefits men…[and]…the slow pace of change is 
significantly driven by incumbency.” According to the Elections Centre, in Wales’ 
local elections in 2017, 895 incumbents stood for election (across 71% of seats) 
with 693 or 77% being successfully re‐elected. In summary, incumbents are 
more likely to be re‐elected than other candidates due to their profile, reputation, 
or track‐record and, as most councillors are older, white men, most successful 
incumbents are therefore older white men. The impact of incumbency has 
therefore led some campaigners to call for term‐limits, quotas, or all‐women 
shortlists. 

115. The Welsh Government has previously controversially sought to tackle the 
issue of incumbency with the Golden Goodbye Scheme in 2002 and the 2015 
White Paper proposal to introduce term limits for councillors, a proposal which 
was roundly rejected by local government. 

116. According to the International Institute for Democracy and Electoral 
Assistance, there are four types of quota in use across the world today. Legal or 
voluntary candidate quotas and legal or voluntary reserved seats, reserved seats 
can be used for example to regulate the number of women elected. These can be 
introduced as a temporary measure and can be used at local and national level.  

117. The WLGA has never proposed the adoption of quotas as a formal WLGA 
policy, although gender quotas were supported by the WLGA’s former Leader, 
Baroness Wilcox of Newport, and the WLGA has previously outlined two 
‘Reserved Seats’ models for discussion: 

a. localised and targeted All Women Reserved Seats for all by‐elections 
during a municipal term. If such vacancies were targeted through a 
voluntary agreement between the main political parties to field only all 
women candidate lists, gender balance could improve by up to 5% during 
a municipal term.    

b. A wider approach, which might require some changes to electoral law 
regarding the nomination process, could see a similar approach adopted 
for ‘vacant’ seats, where councillors had decided to stand down or retire 
at the election. If such councillors were able to commit to or notify of 

Page 38



19 
 

their intention to stand‐down by an early‐enough deadline, political 
parties could agree to voluntarily field all‐women candidate lists in such 
‘vacancies’, which could see as much as a 10‐15% swing in terms of 
gender balance at an election. With such an immediate electoral impact, 
gender balance could potentially be achieved in local government over a 
5‐year period over the course of 2 elections.  

118. Proposals such as quotas are controversial and there remain uncertainties 
regarding the legal basis for statutory quotas and political appetite fo rvoluntary 
quotas.  The Welsh Government plans to consider whether gender quotas should 
be introduced in Wales. The Ministerial Round-table has been informed that there 
may be legal limitations around the Senedd’s competence which may prevent 
statutory quotas being introduced, even if the Welsh Government adopted quotas 
as a policy. Race Alliance Wales’ ‘Do the Right Thing’ concludes that ‘…it is illegal 
to reserve all places for any particular characteristic, with exception made for 
women, and that quotas can legally only be made in regard to women, not other 
protected characteristic.’ 

119. More formal voluntary or statutory quotas have traditionally been 
recommended as a method of rapidly addressing imbalances in diversity and the 
effects of incumbency in perpetuating a lack of diversity. The Electoral Reform 
Society, Fawcett Society and British Council, call for legislation to be introduced 
for quotas (about 40-45%) for women candidates at elections.  Others, such as 
the Women’s Equality Network Wales, Chwarae Teg and the Expert Group on 
Diversity in Local Government also call for this but do not stipulate that it should 
be established in legislation.  

120. Extensive research undertaken by the above organisations and the Senedd 
committee, all point to some of the causes of underrepresentation being about 
how candidates are selected and elected and call for direct action to level the 
playing field so that women initially can be better represented.  

121. The issues they describe are selectorate bias and processes, electorate bias 
and party group culture. The playing field is not level for some, due to conscious 
or unconscious bias, fostered by the image of incumbents and the culture of 
political groups and parties. The image of the best person for the job is often, 
whether consciously or not assumed to be a white middle class, middle aged man 
because this traditionally has been what a typical councillor looks like. The routes 
to and process of selection traditionally support this position.   

122. Research undertaken by the Women’s Equality Network Wales (Annex B 
indicates that – 

• “Among the twenty Organization for Security and Co-operation in Europe 
(OSCE) countries registering the sharpest growth in the proportion of 
women in parliament during the last decade...half had introduced legal 
quotas. By contrast, among the twenty OSCE countries lagging behind in 
growth...none had implemented legal quotas. 

Page 39



20 
 

• 100 Countries world-wide now have some form of gender quotas in place 
and 40 also use them for intersectional groups such as BAME women.”  

123. The International Institute for Democracy and Electoral Assistance has 
outlined several ‘pros and cons’ of quotas: 

Cons: 
• Quotas are against the principle of equal opportunity for all, since women are 

given preference over men. 
• Quotas are undemocratic, because voters should be able to decide who is 

elected. 
• Quotas imply that politicians are elected because of their gender, not because 

of their qualifications and that more qualified candidates are pushed aside. 
• Many women do not want to get elected just because they are women. 
• Introducing quotas creates significant conflicts within the party organization. 
• Quotas violate the principles of liberal democracy. 
Pros: 
• Quotas for women do not discriminate but compensate for actual barriers that 

prevent women from their fair share of the political seats. 
• Quotas imply that there are several women together in a committee or 

assembly, thus minimizing the stress often experienced by the token women. 
• Women have the right as citizens to equal representation. 
• Women's experiences are needed in political life. 
• Election is about representation, not educational qualifications. 
• Women are just as qualified as men, but women's qualifications are 

downgraded and minimized in a male-dominated political system. 
• It is in fact the political parties that control the nominations, not primarily the 

voters who decide who gets elected; therefore, quotas are not violations of 
voters' rights. 

• Introducing quotas may cause conflicts but may be only temporary. 
• Quotas can contribute to a process of democratisation by making the 

nomination process more transparent and formalised. 
124. The main arguments for introducing quotas are not just about ensuring 

equality and to better reflect wider society, but because more diverse life 
experiences lead to better, more rounded decision-making; it would not just 
amplify the voice of women but also impact on the nature of debate and the 
decisions taken. Several organisations argue that quotas are the only way to see 
a step-change in diversity based on the evidence of impact where they have 
been introduced, but also the slow progress in changing local government 
diversity and diversity in UK politics generally. Quotas however remain a 
contested concept and have not been universally supported when previously 

Page 40



21 
 

considered in a Welsh context. There were mixed views among the working 
group members and several leaders expressed reservations about the 
introduction of quotas during the Electoral Reform Society ‘Equal Power Equal 
Voice’ Roundtable debate in October 2020.  

125. The Equality Cabinet Members network also considered the risk around the 
language of ‘quotas’, particularly in terms of public perception as diverse 
candidates could be perceived as being tokenistic, undermining the credibility of 
high-caliber candidates.  

126. It is recommended that Council provides views on the introduction 
of statutory or voluntary quotas for Welsh local elections. 

 

Diversity of the WLGA  

127. Representation on the WLGA Council is one area where local authorities could 
make a positive difference and signal their commitment to change. It is not 
possible to state with certainty the percentage of underrepresented groups on 
the Council as this should be identified by each person themselves and this 
exercise has not been done, however, although there are more women leaders 
than ever before, the Council does not have proportionate representation of 
women or BAME councillors. 
 

128. Some local authorities have delegations of only two or three members to the 
Council and it will therefore be challenging for them to significantly change their 
membership, however, members may consider that there is an opportunity for 
authorities to proactively nominate more diverse members to the WLGA Council. 
The WLGA Council could also seek to appoint more diverse members as role 
models in Spokesperson or Deputy Spokesperson roles or involve wider 
councillors as Champions in the work of the WLGA. 

 

129. Recommendations  
  
It is recommended that WLGA Council: 

 
127.1  Recognises the work of the WLGA’s Cross-Party Working Group 

 on Diversity in Democracy;  
127.2  Agrees to encourage all political parties, through the WLGA 

 Political Groups, to commit to proactive and coordinated 
 activities such as those listed at paragraph 74 above to improve 
 diversity in local government democracy;  

127.3  Adopts a formal position calling for the introduction of 
 resettlement grants for senior salary holders; 

Page 41



22 
 

127.4  Agrees to encourage all councillors to claim any necessary 
 allowances or expenses incurred;  

127.5  Agrees to encourage a declaration by July 2021 from councils in 
 Wales, on becoming ‘Diverse Councils’; to: 

127.6  Provide a clear, public commitment to improving diversity; 
127.7  Demonstrate an open and welcoming culture to all; 
127.8  Consider staggering council meeting times and agreeing recess 

 periods to support councillors with other commitments; and 
127.9  Set out an action plan of activity ahead of the 2022 local 

 elections. 
127.10 Provides views on the adoption of local or national diversity 

 targets; and  
127.11 Provides views on the introduction of statutory or voluntary 

 quotas for Welsh local elections.  
 

Report cleared by: 

Cllr Mary Sherwood, Joint WLGA Spokesperson for Equalities, Welfare Reform and 
Anti-Poverty & Co-Chair of Working Group 
Cllr Susan Elsmore, Joint WLGA Spokesperson for Equalities, Welfare Reform and 
Anti-poverty & Co-Chair of Working Group 
 
Authors:  Daniel Hurford   Sarah Titcombe   
  Head of Policy   Policy and Improvement Officer 
E-mail:  daniel.hurford@wlga.gov.uk  sarah.titcombe@wlga.gov.uk  
 
 

  

Page 42

mailto:daniel.hurford@wlga.gov.uk
mailto:sarah.titcombe@wlga.gov.uk


23 
 

ANNEX A 

WLGA working group on Diversity in Local Democracy  
Members who have fed into the working group: 

• Co-Chair - Cllr Mary Sherwood (Labour), WLGA spokesperson for Equalities, 
Welfare Reform and Anti-Poverty, City and County of Swansea 

• Co-Chair - Cllr Susan Elsmore (Labour), WLGA Spokesperson for Equalities, 
Welfare Reform and Anti-poverty, Cabinet Member for Social Care, Health and 
Well-being, Cardiff Council  

• Cllr Cheryl Green (Liberal Democrat), Chair Corporate Overview Scrutiny 
Committee, Bridgend CBC 

• Cllr Daniel De’Ath (Labour) Lord Mayor, Cardiff Council 
• Cllr Lisa Mytton (Independent) Deputy Leader, Merthyr Tydfil CBC 
• Cllr Sara Jones (Conservative), Cabinet Member for Social Justice and Community 

Development, Monmouthshire County Council  
• Cllr Cefin Campbell (Plaid Cymru), Executive Board Member for Communities and 

Rural Affairs, Carmarthenshire County Council 
• Cllr Nicola Roberts (Plaid Cymru) Chair Licensing and Planning Committee, Isle of 

Anglesey Council 
• Cllr Dhanisha Patel (Labour) Cabinet Member for Wellbeing and Future 

Generations, Bridgend County Borough Council 
• Cllr Ann McCaffrey (Independent), Conwy County Borough Council 
• Cllr Jayne Cowan (Conservative) Cardiff Council 
• Cllr Bablin Molik (Liberal Democrat) Cardiff Council 
• Baroness Wilcox of Newport (Labour), Newport Council who chaired the working 

group initially in her capacity as WLGA Leader  
 

Views have also been provided through discussions with members and officers in: 

• Equalities Cabinet Members’ Network 
• Chairs of Democratic Services Network  
• Heads of Democratic Services Network 

 

Officer Support 

• Daniel Hurford, Head of Policy (Improvement and Governance) WLGA 
• Sarah Titcombe, Policy and Improvement officer (Democratic Services) WLGA  
• Dilwyn Jones Communication Officer, WLGA 
• Huw Evans, Head of Democratic Services, City and County of Swansea 
 
 

 

Page 43



24 
 

ANNEX B 

EXTRACT FROM A WOMENS EQUALITY NETWORK (WEN) WALES 
BRIEFING PAPER                                                            

The case for quotas to deliver equal and diverse representation  

February 2020 

Evidence supporting quotas  

• Research shows that quotas are the “single most effective tool for ‘fast 
tracking’ women’s representation in elected bodies for government.”  
4 

• Among the twenty Organization for Security and Co-operation in Europe 
(OSCE) countries registering the sharpest growth in the proportion of women 
in parliament during the last decade...half had introduced legal quotas. 
By contrast, among the twenty OSCE countries lagging behind in 
growth...none had implemented legal quotas.5 

• There is international backing for gender quotas. Various international 
institutions, including the United Nations Committee on the Elimination of 
Discrimination (CEDAW), the Beijing Platform for Action, the EU and the 
Council of Europe support their use. 

• Ireland has successfully used quotas requiring that at least 30 per cent of 
the candidates each party stands nationally are female (rising to 40 per cent 
after seven years). The percentage of women candidates increased 90 
per cent at the 2016 election compared to the 2011 election, with a 
corresponding 40 per cent increase in the number of women elected—
35 in 2016 compared with 25 in 2011.6 

• 100 Countries world-wide now have some form of gender quotas in place 
and 40 also use them for intersectional groups such as BAME women.  

• A report published by the United Nations in 2012 found that out of the 59 
countries that held elections in 2011, 17 of them had quotas. In those 
countries, women gained 27% of parliamentary seats compared to 
16% in those without.7 
 

 

 

 

 
4 Drude Dahlerup et al., Atlas of Electoral Gender Quotas, International Institute for Democracy and Electoral 
Assistance [IDEA], IPU and Stockholm University, 2013. 
5 Norris, P. and Krook, M. for OSCE, Gender equality in elected office: a six-step action plan, 2011 
6 Brennan, M. and Buckley, F. ‘The Irish legislative gender quota: the first election’, Administration, vol 65(2), 
May 2017 
7 https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2013/aug/20/quotas-women-parliament-authors-edinburgh-book-
festival  

Page 44

https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2013/aug/20/quotas-women-parliament-authors-edinburgh-book-festival
https://www.theguardian.com/politics/2013/aug/20/quotas-women-parliament-authors-edinburgh-book-festival


25 
 

Types of Quota 
Different types of gender quota have been used in different countries, depending on 
the electoral system and local circumstances. The Expert Panel on Electoral reform8 
describes the three main types as:  

• Candidate quotas which introduce a ‘floor’ for the proportion of male or 
female candidates a party stands for election. These could be applied in the 
form of constituency twinning for First Past The Post (FPTP) seats. They could 
also be applied to multimember systems such as STV or Flexible List at a 
constituency or a national level. Parties in Scandinavia, Spain and Austria 
have voluntarily adopted similar quotas, ranging from 33 per cent to 50 per 
cent.  

• Requirements for the ordering of candidates on any list element of the 
system. Voluntary quotas of this nature have been used by parties in Wales in 
Assembly elections, for example zipping of regional candidate lists. (I.e. listing 
candidates alternately according to their gender) 

• ‘Reserved seats’ to which only female candidates could be elected. This 
type of quota is widely used in South Asia, the Arab region and sub Saharan 
Africa. 

 

Examples of Incentives used: 
• Croatia has legally binding quotas and uses incentives - for each MP 

representing an underrepresented gender, political parties receive an 
additional 10 per cent of the amount envisaged per individual MP;  

• Bosnia and Herzegovina: where 10 per cent of the funding provided to 
political parties is distributed to parties in proportion to the number of seats 
held by MPs of the gender which is less represented in the legislature, 
 

• Two for the price of one deposits for two candidates of different genders 
could be used in Wales —this would appear to us to be proportionate in the 
context of seeking to ensure that the gender balance in the Assembly reflects 
the gender balance in the communities it serves.9 

 
www.wenwales.org.uk / @wenwales   

 

 

 
8 A Parliament that works for Wales, Report of the Expert Panel on Assembly Electoral Reform, November 2017  
9 A Parliament that works for Wales, Report of the Expert Panel on Assembly Electoral Reform, November 2017  
 
 
 

Page 45

http://www.wenwales.org.uk/


26 
 

ANNEX  C 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AND ELECTIONS (WALES) ACT 2021 

The Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021 includes provisions which will 
contribute to diversity in local government democracy. These are:  

 

• Entitlement to Job sharing for executive members and committee chairs 
• A duty on principal councils to produce a Public Participation Strategy and for 

it to be reviewed regularly. This will include encouraging people to participate 
in decision making and promoting awareness of how to become a member of 
the council.  

• A duty on political group leaders to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct by members of their group. 

• Electronic broadcasting of full Council meetings initially, and other meetings 
to be announced later, following ongoing consultation by WG with Councils. 

• The provision of multi-location attendance at council meetings including 
physical, hybrid and remote attendance.  

• Provisions enabling the maximum period of absence for each type of family 
absence for members of local authorities to be specified within regulations 
and for adoptive leave to reflect that which is available to employees. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 46



27 
 

ANNEX D  
 

(DRAFT) DIVERSE COUNCIL DECLARATION 
The following provides a draft declaration. It is proposed that this is further 
developed in consultation with authorities, representative organisations and will be 
informed by emerging priorities from councils’ own diversity and equality action 
plans and emerging priorities from the Welsh Government’s Race Equality Action 
Plan. 

This Council commits to being a Diverse Council. We agree to: 

• Provide a clear public commitment to improving diversity in democracy 
• Demonstrate an open and welcoming culture to all, promoting the highest 

standards of behaviour and conduct 
• Set out a local Diverse Council Action Plan ahead of the 2022 local elections.  

o Appoint Diversity Ambassadors for each political group on the council 
to work with each other and local party associations to encourage 
recruitment of candidates from underrepresented groups.  

o Encourage and enable people from underrepresented groups to stand 
for office through the provision of activities such as mentoring and 
shadowing programmes and information and learning events for 
people interested in standing and official candidates. 

o Proactive engagement and involvement with local community groups 
and partner organisations supporting and representing under-
represented groups  

o Ensure that all members and candidates complete the Welsh 
Government candidates’ and councillors’ survey distributed at election 
time.  

o Sets targets ambitious targets for candidates from under-represented 
groups at the 2022 local elections 
 

• Work towards the standards for member support and Development set out in 
the Wales Charter for Member Support and Development.  

• Demonstrate a commitment to a duty of care for Councillors by: 
o providing access to counselling services for all councillors 
o having regard for the safety and wellbeing of councillors whenever 

they are performing their role as councillors.  
o taking a zero-tolerance approach to bullying and harassment by 

members including through social networks.  
• Provide flexibility in council business by  

o regularly reviewing and staggering meeting times  
o encouraging and supporting remote attendance at meetings and  
o agreeing recess periods to support councillors with caring or work 

commitments.  
• Ensure that all members take up the allowances and salaries to which they 

are entitled, particularly any reimbursement for costs of care, so that all 

Page 47



28 
 

members receive fair remuneration for their work and that the role of 
member is not limited to those who can afford it.   

• Ensure that councillors from under-represented groups are represented 
whenever possible in high profile, high influence roles.  
 

 

Page 48



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

DIVERSITY IN DEMOCRACY ACTION PLAN

OBJECTIVE POTENTIAL ACTIONS / PROPOSED 
WAY FORWARD 

TIMFRAME 

Increase understanding of different 
tiers of government in Wales, the 
role each plays in society and how 
they operate.   

Dissemination of Welsh Government 
educational resources to accompany the 
extension of the franchise to 16 and 17 
year olds in Wales 

Promote Welsh Government’s Guidance / 
materials for 16 and 17 year olds 
regarding Democracy in Wales.  Explore 
Web-based platforms.  

Overview of the Council website page 
‘Becoming a Councillor’ to be reviewed 
and promoted.

Consultation Engagement and Equalities 
Team to explore other potential avenues 
through school forums / youth councils / 
career fairs.  Continue to engage with 
schools (subject to pandemic), including 
links with school councils and youth 
councils. 

Resources have been 
developed by WG and 
have been 
disseminated to YEPs / 
schools.  

Autumn 2021

Autumn 2021 

Autumn 2021

Increase engagement with the 
public to raise awareness of the 
role and activities of the Council 
provide clarity about how the public 
can better inform local decision 
making; build greater community 
cohesion through a greater 
presence at community events, 
creating and building upon 
community networks.

Overview of the Council website page 
‘Becoming a Councillor’ to be reviewed 
and promoted.

Work with Town and Community Council’s 
to ensure links with ‘Becoming a 
Councillor page’ are promoted.  

Work with Bridgend Community Cohesion 
and Equality Forum (BCCEF) to ensure 
links with ‘Becoming a Councillor page’ 
are promoted.  

Publication of Council’s Constitution.  
Constitution guide now a requirement 
under the Local Government and 
Elections (Wales) Act 2021.  

Develop Public Participation Strategy 
Scheme for compliance with duty under 
the 2021 Act.  Encouraging people to 
participate in decision making and 
promoting awareness of how to become a 

Autumn 2021

Autumn 2021 

October to December 
2021

Constitution currently 
on the website.  Guide 
to be in place by May 
2022. 

Provision in force May 
2022. 

Page 49



Member, what membership entails, 
promoting / facilitating processes 

To continue the webcasting of meetings 
as specified under the 2021 Act and 
explore the opportunity of hybrid meetings 
and the availability of translation facilities 
for meetings to be conducted bilingually.  

Appoint Diversity Champions for each 
political group. 

All meetings are 
currently being 
webcasted.   

August 2021

Comprehensive training and 
awareness programme available 
through a variety of routes available 
for members to support them in 
their role. 

Desktop review of the Elected Member 
Learning and Development Strategy 
identifying areas and development 
available for Members. 

Review areas of training and development 
which can be made available online, core 
set of training materials which can be 
used for all Members.

Members Induction Programme - work 
with the WLGA and share good practices 
with other councils.

Ensuring training opportunities are 
available bilingually whenever possible. 

Provide the opportunity for mentoring / 
shadowing for newly Elected Members 
and undertaking Personal Development 
Reviews.  

Promoting the WLGA’s online “Councillor 
Guide” for the 2022 elections and the 
suite of National e’learning modules 
specifically developed for Members and 
freely available via the NHS 
learning@wales website.  

Completed – reported 
to Council in June 
2021.  

Ongoing 

Ongoing 

As outlined in Elected 
Member Learning and 
Development Strategy

May 2022 

Improve the safety of councillors 
and their families when undertaking 
their council duties

Ensure that members undertake health 
and safety training, lone working training 
to ensure their safety during elections and 
when they are elected. Promote the Lone 
Working Policy and guidance.  

Publish official addresses on council 
website rather than personal addresses 
for Members (where requested).

Completed, to be 
promoted again 
following election.  

Completed.  To be 
reviewed again 
following election.    

Page 50



Newly Elected Members to have identity 
cards to allow secure access to council 
buildings.  

To continue the webcasting of Council 
meetings as specified under the 2021 Act 
and explore the opportunity of hybrid 
meetings. 

Social media safety training to be 
delivered to members through the 
Member Induction Programme and built 
upon during their term of office.

Promote the WLGA’s advice and support 
service to individual Members who receive 
online abuse.  

May 2022 

Ongoing 

May 2022

Maximise opportunities for 
individuals to work in ways that 
enable them to achieve a work / life 
balance which protects their welfare 
and wellbeing and allows them to 
manage any caring / dependency 
relationships. 

Arrangements in place for remote 
attendance in meetings in light of the 
experience of virtual meetings during the 
COVID-19 pandemic.  Review opportunity 
for hybrid meetings.  

Promote job-sharing by executive leaders 
and other office holders. 

  

Promote the remunerations that are 
available to Members on the Council 
website and to candidates standing for 
Election by linking with the Council 
Business page. 

Promote family absence provisions. 

Promote the IRPW Contribution Towards 
Costs of Care and Personal Assistance 

Encourage all Members to claim any 
necessary allowances or expenses 
incurred. 

Ongoing 

Monitoring Officer in 
line with 2021 Act. 

Completed and 
promoted again 
following election.  

Completed.  Details to 
be provided to 
candidates and again 
promoted following 
election. 

Completed. “Claim 
Form” designed and 
available via the DS 
Team.  Details to be 
provided to candidates 
and again promoted 
following election. 

Completed and 
promoted again 
following election.  

Page 51



Support the Welsh Government’s and 
IRPW’s commitment to explore 
Resettlement grants or ‘parachute 
payments’ payments for Members who 
lose their seats at election.  

Reviewing meeting times to have more 
flexibility to suit the committee Members.  

Completed. In 
accordance with the 
2011 Measure this 
must be undertaken at 
least once per term.  

Assess the effectiveness of the 
provisions in 2011 Measure in 
relation to data collection, and in 
relation to other candidate data that 
could be collected in order for 
political parties to support diverse 
candidates at elections

Undertake a diversity and inclusion survey 
with Members which will provide a 
benchmark for future elections and allow 
the feedback to be reviewed to support / 
barriers that may have been experienced 
by a Member during their term of office. 
The survey feedback will help to deliver a 
positive and diverse environment for 
future Members to undertake their roles.

Share survey feedback with Members.  

Completed.  

July 2021.

Greater respect and support for 
those standing for and securing 
elected office. 

Promote duty on political group leaders to 
promote high standards of conduct. 

Standards Committee to monitor 
compliance in relation to standards of 
conduct and provide training.  

Supporting the Welsh Government’s plans 
to introduce an Access to Elected Office 
fund to assist disabled people to stand for 
elected office at the 2022 Local Elections.  

Monitoring Officer in 
line with the 2021 Act. 

All Members required to 
have mandatory Code 
of Conduct Training.  
Refresher training took 
place January 2021, 
training to be arranged 
for newly elected 
members. 
 

Increase awareness of the role of 
members, the contribution they 
make to society and how to 
become an Elected Member.  

Overview of the Council website page 
‘Becoming a Councillor’ to be reviewed 
and promoted.

Produce a series of short explainer videos 
and sessions for the public highlighting 
the role of the member including: the 
benefits from both a member and 
community perspective, type of work 
undertaken, the remuneration received, 
training provided to undertake the role.  

Autumn 2021 

Autumn 2021 

Page 52



Promote the WLGA website ‘Becoming a 
Councillor’.  

Seek the participation of Group Leaders to 
champion the diversity expectations within 
the selection processes of their political 
parties and to encourage Group Leaders 
to promote the advice available to future 
candidates or individuals considering 
standing for office at the earliest 
opportunity. 

Encourage Members to utilise own media 
platforms to promote the role of a 
Councillor through Member blogs / ‘day in 
the life of’.  

Consultation Engagement and Equalities 
team to present and share videos and 
relevant information with BCCEF

October to December 
2021

Page 53



This page is intentionally left blank



BRIDGEND COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

REPORT TO DEMOCRATIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

24 JUNE 2021

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 

MEMBER INDUCTION PROGRAMME 2022

1. Purpose of report

1.1 The purpose of this report is to advise the Committee of proposed topics and 
scheduling of the Elected Member Induction Programme following the Local 
Government Elections in 2022.  

2. Connection to corporate well-being objectives / other corporate priorities

2.1 This report assists in the achievement of the following corporate well-being 
objectives under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015:-  

1. Supporting a successful sustainable economy – taking steps to make the 
county borough a great place to do business, for people to live, work, study 
and visit, and to ensure that our schools are focused on raising the skills, 
qualifications and ambitions for all people in the county borough. 

2. Helping people and communities to be more healthy and resilient - 
taking steps to reduce or prevent people from becoming vulnerable or 
dependent on the Council and its services.  Supporting individuals and 
communities to build resilience, and enable them to develop solutions to 
have active, healthy and independent lives.

3. Smarter use of resources – ensure that all resources (financial, physical, 
ecological, human and technological) are used as effectively and efficiently 
as possible and support the creation of resources throughout the community 
that can help to deliver the Council’s well-being objectives.

3. Background

3.1 Member training and development is required by the Local Government Act 2000, 
Local Government (Wales) Measure 2011 and the Council’s Elected Member 
Learning and Development Strategy.  

3.2 Following the Local Government Elections in 2022 there will be a number of new 
and returning Elected Members.  An Induction Programme is an important 
development opportunity as it enables Members to quickly become familiar with 
how the Council works, the rules and procedures under which it operates, the 
complexities of the Elected Member role and help them integrate quickly into the 
Council following their election.  

Page 55

Agenda Item 6



4. Current situation/proposal

4.1 The Elected Member Learning and Development Strategy was considered by the 
Committee at its meeting on 25th March 2021 and the final Strategy will be 
presented to Council for approval in July.  The Strategy identifies 5 Phases of 
Learning and Development for Elected Members.  Three of the phases cover core 
learning activities following election as a Councillor: 

Phase 1 – Administration 
(First three days after the election)

To establish the newly Elected Members within the Council and will include:

 Fulfilling their statutory requirements regarding their Acceptance of Office and 
completing their Declaration of Personal Interests, 

 Creation of ICT accounts and provision of ICT equipment;
 The provision of personal information in order to set up remuneration payments, 

web pages and enable officers to carry out other necessary administrative 
functions;

 A briefing of the facilities available to Elected Members within the Authority;
 The taking of official photographs for use on the Bridgend County Borough Council 

(BCBC) website and ID cards.

Phase 2 – The Essentials
(Prior to the Annual Meeting of Council in May 2022).  

To provide Elected Members with sufficient knowledge to prepare them to 
undertake their initial role in the support of Council business.  This phase may 
include briefings on the following topics from key officers:

 Chief Executive – to provide an overview of the Council, its services and structures.  
 Monitoring Officer – Introduction to Local Government, the Council’s Constitution 

and meeting procedures, Members Code of Conduct.
 Corporate Directors – Directorate Service provision – challenges and 

achievements. 
 Head of Democratic Services – roles of and appointment to Committees.  Systems 

used at Council and Committee meetings.  

Phase 3 – The Core Functions
(First 6 months after the Annual Meeting of Council) 

To provide Elected Members with the knowledge and skills to enable them to 
undertake their core functions as Elected Members.  It is intended to provide a sound 
basis for decision making which is required by councillors to carry out their role 
effectively: 

 Governance and Audit Committee
 Development Control Committee
 Overview and Scrutiny Committees
 Democratic Services Committee

Page 56



 Licensing Committee
 Appeals Panel
 Chairing Skills
 Questioning Skills
 Corporate Parenting
 Safeguarding
 Member Referrals 
 Ward and Casework
 Delegated Powers
 Constitution 
 Chairing Skills 
 Questioning Skills 
 Social Media Policy 
 Member Referrals 

4.2 The Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) has prepared a Development 
Framework for Councillors in Wales 2021 which outlines the knowledge and 
behaviours expected by Councillors in Wales.  Using this Framework, they have 
also complied the “Framework Induction Curriculum for Candidates and New 
Members in Wales for the Local Elections 2022” as attached at Appendix 1.  This 
indicates the key topics and timescales for the induction and includes additional 
topics which have not been previously identified i.e personal safety and self-care.  

4.3 To support the Induction Programme, an information pack will be provided to 
Members when they sign the Acceptance of Office.  This will include useful 
information such as core policies and procedures, timetable of meetings and useful 
contact numbers.  It is proposed that the Programme also include events where 
Members will be able to meet officers to find out more about the Council’s services 
as well as other new, and returning Members.  

4.4 In addition to the ongoing Learning and Development Programme, a Training Needs 
Analysis Questionnaire will be compiled and distributed during December 2022 – 
January 2023.  All Members’ responses will be analysed and, from this, the ongoing 
Programme will be developed and presented to the Committee.  

4.5 The Committee is requested to identify any additional themes, topics, policies or 
activities which should be included in the Induction Programme.  Following receipt of 
the Committee’s direction, Corporate Directors will also be requested to identify any 
additional topics that they consider necessary for inclusion.  

5. Effect upon policy framework and procedure rules

5.1 There will be no effect on the policy framework and procedure rules.  

6. Equality Act 2010 implications

6.1 The protected characteristics identified within the Equality Act 2010, Socio-
economic Duty and the impact on the use of the Welsh language have been 
considered in the preparation of this report. As a public body in Wales, the Council 
must consider the impact of strategic decisions, such as the development or the 

Page 57



review of policies, strategies, services and functions. It is considered that there will 
be no significant or unacceptable equality impacts as a result of this report. 

7. Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 implications

7.1 The Induction Programme and Elected Member Learning and Development 
Strategy is consistent with the five ways of working as defined under the Act in that 
the Induction Programme will help prepare Members for their decision making 
responsibilities in which they will need to consider the positive and negative impacts 
on future generations, long term community resilience, economic, environmental 
and social capital.  

8.1 Financial implications

8.1 Elected Member learning and development is resourced from the allocated Member 
Development budget.  Reasonable allocation will be made as part of the annual 
budget round and applied with regard to the corporate needs of the Authority.  The 
Head of Democratic Services will monitor appropriate spend on the budget.  In 
house training will be provided by Directorates if the topic relates to their service 
areas.  The costs for this type of event will be met from within Directorate budgets 
and not from the Member Development budget.  

9. Recommendations

The Committee is recommended to consider the report and:

9.1 Provide its views on the WLGA “Framework Induction Curriculum for Candidates 
and New Members in Wales for the Local Elections 2022”;

9.2 Identify any additional activities, themes, key policies or other topics which should   
be included in the Induction Programme. 

L Griffiths  
Group Manager – Legal and Democratic Services
June 2021 

Contact Officer: L Griffiths 
Group Manager - Legal and Democratic Services 

Telephone: (01656) 643145

E-mail: laura.griffiths@bridgend.gov.uk 

Background documents: 
None 

Page 58



Framework Induction Curriculum for Candidates and New Members in Wales for the Local Elections 2022

This framework outlines the curriculum for the induction of members in Wales leading up to and following the local elections in 2022.

It sets out the suggested local and national activities to support potential and new members. It is not designed to be prescriptive as the needs of each Council 
and Councillor are different. It should however provide a guide for what should be considered when developing local programmes. 

The Induction Framework has been developed by Local Authorities working with the WLGA. It has been designed to fit with the Development Framework for 
Members, a competency framework for members which provides more information about the subjects which should be covered in both induction and 
ongoing member development. It also fits with the Wales Charter for Member Support and Development and takes account of the legislative requirements 
for members including those set out in the Local Government (Wales) measure 2011 and the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021.

Following the delivery of an induction programme, further development for councillors should be informed by personal development review. 

Councils will seek to procure and share learning opportunities with each other and with community and town councils wherever possible. 

Methods of Delivery

Officers and members have identified what works best for new member induction. Suggestions include:

 Less is more. Although there is a lot of information to convey,  learning activities should focus on the minimum amount of information at each stage, so that 
members do not become overloaded.

 Member centred. All development activities should be designed with the member role in mind and concentrate only on what members really need to know at that 
time. At induction level this might include the role of the member, what is important to the community and what information is required to take early decisions. 
Local and national policy and strategy can be introduced later, as and when necessary. Following induction members should, through personal development 
reviews be asked about their development needs. 

 Engaging and interactive.  Any development sessions for members should be as entertaining as possible, with plenty of opportunities for discussions and scenarios. 
The use of PowerPoint should be limited.

 As and when. Wherever possible members should be provided with learning opportunities at their convenience, at a time when it is needed and relevant and in a 
medium of their choice, combining face to face sessions with online, e learning or briefings.  

 Train the trainers. Whenever possible, learning activities should be provided by a variety of different people including those with skills in learning and development. 
This may be achieved by providing training or guidance in training delivery to service heads, using the skills of council OD staff, having experienced members co-
deliver training, or engaging professional trainers. 

P
age 59



When What Audience Delivery Method Training materials 
available/needed?

Who organises/
delivers?

Possible collaboration or 
shared workshop 
materials 

POTENTIAL CANDIDATES
2020 WG Diversity in Democracy and 

Democratic Renewal 
Programme

Potential 
Candidates. 
Voters

Comms and media 
initiative encouraging 
understanding of the 
democratic process, 
voting, participation and 
standing for office. 

Currently education resources 
available for newly 
enfranchised young people 
and qualifying foreign citizens  
on the Hub. Hwb (gov.wales)

WG with steering group 
including WLGA. LAs.

2019 WLGA be a Councillor information Potential 
Candidates

Be a Councillor Website
https://www.beacouncillo
r.wales/

E learning, Councillor videos 
and pen portraits in 
production to be added to the 
website early 2021 

WLGA

2018 IRP information Potential 
Candidates

Website 
https://www.youtube.co
m/watch?v=h3o0eKrX2Ds
&feature=youtu.be

no IRP

2021 onwards Council Information and 
promotion activities. 

Potential 
Candidates

Open evenings, 
information sessions, 
mentoring and shadowing 
schemes.

no All Councils

2019 onwards National mentoring initiatives 
for people from 
underrepresented groups. 
Mentors will include serving 
councillors. 

Potential 
Candidates 

Through national 
organisations

Training for mentors from 
national organisations.

Currently, Ethnic 
Minorities and Youth 
Support Team Wales.  
Women’s Equality 
Network Wales. Soon to 
develop in to a 4 way 
collaboration with 

P
age 60

https://hwb.gov.wales/
https://www.beacouncillor.wales/
https://www.beacouncillor.wales/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=h3o0eKrX2Ds&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=h3o0eKrX2Ds&feature=youtu.be
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=h3o0eKrX2Ds&feature=youtu.be


Stonewall Cymru and 
Disability Wales 2021

Following 
elections 

Local Mentoring schemes New members By experienced members Training sessions in mentoring 
available from the WLGA 

Councils

NEW MEMBERS
Week One General introduction to the role 

and local government. 
WLGA Councillors Guide.

Signposted to all 
Members on 
election. 

Online Guide, developed 
from Be a Councillor 
Website.

WLGA

Week One Orientation (Council offices and 
County facilities, access and 
security.  

All members Tour Information/ maps etc. as part 
of introductory package 
produced in each authority.

Councils

Week One Introduction to the Council, and 
local Corporate Governance, 
how decisions are taken, 
structures and meetings 
working with officers, working 
with the community and other 
bodies, joint arrangements. 

All members (M) Workshop/webinar
Chief Executive, Head of 
DS. Leader

To be developed by staff 
locally. 
E learning in production.

Councils and 
Merthyr 
Tydfil/WLGA/NHS. All 
Wales Academi e 
learning module 
corporate governance. 

Week one ICT induction including for 
remote working and issue of 
equipment

All members (M) Workshop and individual 
sessions.  

Session and guidance to be 
developed by staff locally

Councils

Week one Code of Conduct and Ethics 
including civility and respect

All members(M) Workshop/webinar 
Monitoring Officer. 

E learning in production Councils and 
AWA (e-learning) 
Carmarthenshire
Ethics, standards and 
code of conduct

Week one General meeting Participation
Rules of engagement, multi-
location meetings, etiquette, 
broadcasting.

All members(M) Workshop/dry runs
HODS/DS officers/Digital 
staff/Lead Member 

Locally produced materials Councils

1st 2 months “Market Place” 
Introduction to service areas

All members Market place, all senior 
officers with “stalls” 
sharing key policy info.

Delivery materials not required 
– basic information to be 
included in introductory 
package, who’s who etc.

Councils

P
age 61



1st 2 Months Introduction to Equalities and 
Diversity including personal 
awareness and behaviour. 

All members(M) Workshop /webinar 
Equalities Officers, Lead 
Member. 

e- learning in production Councils and 
AWA (E-learning)
Denbighshire 

1st2 Months Safeguarding children and 
vulnerable adults. 

All members(M) Workshop/webinar -
Directors of Education/SS 

 e- learning in production Councils and 
AWA (E-learning)
Pembrokeshire 

1st 2 Months Personal safety and self-care
Stress management, personal 
resilience, work-life balance. 
Bullying and harassment, online 
abuse. 
Sources of help and support 
within and beyond the Council. 

All Members (M) Local Workshop/Webinar
MOs, HODS, Health and 
Safety and Digital officers. 
Senior members

Guidance notes and 
signposting for some topics 
available now from WLGA 
website

Councils and 
AWA (e-learning)
Time and workload 
management Wrexham. 
Managing stress and 
coping with bullying and 
harassment Blaenau 
Gwent.  

1st 2 Months Community Leadership and 
Casework 

All members (M) Workshop/Webinar
Senior member with 
HODS.
 e- learning. External 
facilitators.

e-learning in production Councils and
AWA (e-learning) Conwy

Prior to first 
meeting of 
committee

Planning. Local planning and 
development management

Planning 
Committee(M)

 Workshop/Webinar 
Planning Officer 

e- learning in production Councils and 
AWA (E learning) 
Bridgend

Prior to first 
meeting of 
committee

Standards. Responsibilities of 
the committee and the 
standards regime. 

Standards 
Committee(M)

Workshop/Webinar 
Monitoring Officer

Prior to first 
meeting of 
committee

Licensing. Responsibilities of the 
committee and licensing law. 

Licensing 
Committee(M)

Workshop/Webinar 
Licensing Officer 

e-learning in production Councils and 
AWA (e learning) Powys)

Prior to first 
meeting of 
committee

Governance and Audit Governance and 
Audit 
Committee(M)

Local Workshop/Webinar 
Finance and HODS Officer.

e-learning in production Councils and 
AWA (e learning) 
Audit and Risk Isle of 
Anglesey 

Prior to 
participating

Appointments, appeals and 
interview skills

Panel 
members(M)

Local Workshop/Webinar 
HR Director

Councils

P
age 62



Prior to first 
scrutiny 
meetings 

The role of Scrutiny and how to 
be an effective scrutiny member 

All members(M) Workshop/Webinar 
HODS/Scrutiny officers
Or external provider

e-learning in production Councils and 
AWA (E-learning) 
Monmouthshire and 
WLGA

Prior to 
chairing first 
meeting

Chairing Skills (meeting 
management) 

All chairs (M) Workshop/webinar DS 
Leads/External facilitators

E learning available on AWA Councils commissioned 
external facilitators 
AWA (E-learning) Cardiff 

Prior to 
chairing first 
scrutiny 
meeting 

Scrutiny chairing (committee 
and meeting management)

All Scrutiny 
Chairs (M) 

Workshop/Webinar 
Scrutiny leads/ External 
facilitators

Councils and 
commissioned external 
facilitators

1st 6 Months Data Management and FOI 
including GDPR

All members(M) Workshop/Webinar  – DP 
officers  

 e- learning in production Councils and 
AWA (E-learning)
Caerphilly 

1st 6 Months Corporate Parenting All members(M) Workshop/webinar 
Directors of SS

e- learning in production Councils and 
AWA ( E learning) 
Flintshire 

1st 6 Months Finance including budgeting and 
treasury management

All members(M) Local practical 
Workshop/webinar with 
local data.
Finance Directors

e-learning in production Councils and 
AWA  (E eLearning) 
Torfaen  

1st 6 Months Operating within the Welsh 
Language Act and Local 
Standards 

All Members (M) Local workshop/webinar 
Briefing from Welsh 
Language Leads

 e-learning in production Councils and 
AWA ( e-learning) 
Gwynedd 

1st 6 Months Violence against Women and 
Domestic Violence 

All Members (M) National/local 
Workshop/webinar from 
lead officers and/or Welsh 
Government

e-learning in production Councils and
AWA (e-learning)  
Rhondda Cynon Taff

1st 6 months Planning for non-planning 
members – protocols

All members (M) Local workshop/webinar 
Planning 
officers/experienced 
member

e-learning in production Councils and 
AWA (e-learning) 
Bridgend

2nd 6 Months New Cabinet Development. Cabinet External facilitators. Materials from external Councils and 

P
age 63



Note:

(M) = Mandatory AWA https://learning.wales.nhs.uk/  

Section of AWA to load and view e learning modules here https://learning.wales.nhs.uk/course/view.php?id=313

Team building, developing a 
political vision, working with 
officers, working with Scrutiny. 

Academi Wales. facilitators. commissioned external 
facilitators. 

2nd 6 Months 
and ongoing.

Policy, services and legislative 
requirements updates 

Relevant 
committees

Heads of Service By local staff as and when 
necessary
WG/WLGA briefings when 
available

Councils

2nd 6 Months Effective Scrutiny and individual 
scrutiny skills.  Collaborative 
scrutiny and scrutiny of joint 
arrangements. 

All Scrutiny 
Members 

Workshop/Webinar 
Scrutiny lead officers and 
members 
External facilitators

Councils and 
commissioned external 
facilitators 

2nd 6 Months The role of members in relation 
to the Social Services and Well-
being (Wales) Act

All members (M) Local Workshop - 
Directors of SS and Lead 
Member.
 

e-learning in production Councils and
AWA (E-learning)
Newport

2nd 6 months Using Social Media All Members Hands on Workshop
Comms and DS staff
Local SM strategies 
Or External facilitators 

e- learning in production Councils and 
AWA (e-learning) 
Swansea 

2nd 6 months Public Speaking and working 
with the media 

All Members Comms and DS officers . 
External facilitators 

e-learning in production Councils and AWA (e-
learning Wrexham) 

2nd 6 months The role of members in relation 
to the Wellbeing of Future 
Generations Act

All Members(M) Workshop/Webinar  - 
Appropriate senior officers 
and Lead Member. 

e- learning in production Councils and 
AWA (E-learning)
Ceredigion 

P
age 64

https://learning.wales.nhs.uk/
https://learning.wales.nhs.uk/course/view.php?id=313

	Agenda
	3 Cymeradwyaeth Cofnodion
	4 Adroddiad Blynyddol
	5 Amrywiaeth mewn Democratiaeth
	WLGA Special Meeting
	107. Political parties were encouraged, through the Diversity in Democracy programme, to commit to gender targets at the 2017 elections and Welsh Labour, for example, committed to fielding women in 40% of winnable seats.
	108. Other initiatives, such as 50-50 by 2020 have previously adopted targets and the Welsh Government’s recently published ‘Diversity and inclusion strategy for public appointmentsP2F P’ includes an action for:
	‘Welsh Government to consult and if desired set overall targets across all Boards in Wales for BAME, disabled, LGBT+ and young people and socioeconomic groups, recognising that individual Boards have varying specific requirements.’

	Diversity Action Plan

	6 Rhaglen Sefydlu Aelodau 2022
	2a. Induction Framework Appendix 1


